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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited (“Tianda Pharmaceuticals”), formerly
known as Tianda Holdings Limited, is primarily engaging in research
and development, manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical,
biotechnology and healthcare products.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, the Company owns two pharmaceutical
R&D centers and production bases, in Zhuhai and Kunming, China,
specializing in research and development, and manufacturing
of Chinese medicines as well as biochemical medicines and
biotechnology products. The Company’s PRC headquarters and
sales center in Shenzhen is responsible for brand building for Tianda
Pharmaceuticals’s products, market planning and selling, and
managing sales network in China. The Company also sets up a wholly-
owned subsidiary in Australia for investment, development, marketing
and sales, as well as pharmaceutical development in South Pacific
countries, such as Australia and New Zealand etc.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
(Stock Code: 00455). Tianda Group Limited (“Tianda Group”) is the
controlling shareholder with a shareholding of 63.5%.
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COMPANY STRUCTURE

Below is a simplified chart of the Group as at 31 March 2013:
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MILESTONES

The Company and Tianda Group conducted asset swap,
which included, among others, the injection of Tianda Group’s
60% stakes in Zhuhai S.E.Z. Cheng Cheng Printing Co Ltd
into the Company in exchange for the Company’s Zhuhai lot

In an effort to develop mining and energy business in China, the
Company and Tianda Group jointly invested in Tianda Mining
(Yunnan) Limited and Tianda Mining (Gansu) Limited

Tianda Group injected capital in form of a lot in Zhuhai,
China and became the controlling shareholding of the
Company with a total interest of 50.86%

The Company acquired 49% interest of
Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.
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The Company and Tianda Group conducted asset swap, aiming
to consolidate all pharmaceutical business to the Company and
moving all non-pharmaceutical business to Tianda Group.

The Company then formally

changed name to Tianda Pharmaceuticals Ltd

The Company changed name to
Tianda Holdings Ltd

Hansom Holdings Ltd

listed on the

Main Board of the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
Stock Code : 00455

The Company changed name to
Yunnan Enterprises Holdings Ltd,
primarily engaging in trading and

investing in companies

The Company acquired 12.5%
interest of Yuxi Globe Colour
Printing Carton Co. Ltd

|~ The Company increased shareholdings of Yunnan
Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd to 55%

| The Company acquired 25% interest of Yunnan
Huaning Xingning Colour Material Printing Co Ltd

.~ The Company increased shareholdings of Yuxi
Globe Colour Printing Carton Co. Ltd. to 18.75%

|~ Tianda Group acquired 9.35% interest of the
Company for the first time




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS
Year ended 31 March
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Revenue 56,936 82,951 206,346 397,233 281,995
Profit before taxation 19,328 50,936 120,155 102,702 83,359
Income tax expense (5,638) (10,244) (18,718) (23,172) (15,663)
Profit for the year 13,690 40,692 101,437 79,530 67,696
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 2,752 21,287 67,427 43,096 37,740
Non-controlling interests 10,938 19,405 34,010 36,434 29,956
13,690 40,692 101,437 79,530 67,696
HK cent HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
Earnings per share 0.29 2.28 4.34 2.30 2.02
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
At 31 March
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Total assets 438,225 461,756 1,000,204 1,007,845 914,871
Total liabilities (25,611) (22,855) (152,867) (137,899) (139,671)

412,614 438,901 847,337 869,946 775,200

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 387,816 409,880 676,296 702,958 737,995
Non-controlling interests 24,798 29,021 171,041 166,988 37,205

412,614 438,901 847,337 869,946 775,200
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Financial Summary

[ REVENUE ] [ BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE ]
HK$'000 HK Cents
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Note:  One off items included gain on disposal of subsidiaries, gain on disposal of an associate, increased in fair value of an investment property and/or gain/ lose of
exploration and evaluation assets.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Wen Quan, aged 44 was appointed as an executive Director in 2003. He is the Chairman, Managing
Director, the Chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company,
and a Director of the Group’s certain subsidiaries and South Hong Investment Limited. Mr. Fang is the founder and
Chairman of Tianda Group and Tianda Institute. He studied International Relations in the University of Sydney and
Tsinghua University. He has served as council member of the Chinese People’s Institute of Foreign Affairs, academic
advisor to the Institute of International Studies at Tsinghua University in Beijing, council member of Sydney Symphony
Orchestra, Senior Honorary Chairman of the Australian Council of Chinese Organizations and Honorary Chairman of
the Australian Council for the Promotion of Peaceful Reunification of China. Upholding the morality of “Caring for a
Better World”, Mr. Fang is always committed to community services, including donations to the poverties, education
and training, healthcare, scientific research and environmental protection, culture and arts.

Mr. Li Suiming, aged 55 was appointed as an executive Director in 2004. Mr. Li is a senior engineer, graduated from
Yunnan Polytechnic College. Mr. Li studied the master program of International Economic and Trade Relationships of
Tianjin NanKai University in 2002 and obtained a master degree in 2004. Mr. Li held the posts of workshop chief and
chief engineer in Yuxi Cigarette Factory from 1975 to 1997. He was appointed as the Vice President of Hongta Group
in 1997. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Li was also the Chairman of Yunnan Hongta Group Company Limited. In 2006, he
was promoted to the position of President of Hongta Group.

Mr. Liu Huijiang, aged 57, was appointed as an executive Director in 2006. He is a senior engineer, graduated from
College of Water Resources and Hydroelectric Engineering (now Wuhan University). Mr. Liu held the posts of design
department head, assistant factory manager and factory manager of Yuxi Hydropower Supplies Factory from 1976 to
1993. He was appointed as deputy general manager of Yunnan Hongta Group Company Limited from January 1994.
Mr. Liu is also the director of SDIC Yunnan Dachaoshan Hydropower Company Limited, Yunnan Huaneng Lancang
River Hydropower Company Limited, Hongta Financial Investment Company Limited and Kunming Pharmaceutical
Corporation.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
audit committee of the Company with effect from 10 April 2008. Mr. Chiu was appointed as the Chairman of risk
management committee on 22 July 2009. On 1 April 2012, he was appointed as the Chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the nomination committee. He received an LL.B. degree from the University of Sydney.
He is admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of New South Wales and the High Court of Australia. He has over
30 years of experience in legal practice. Mr. Chiu is the founding member of the Board of Trustees of the Australian
Nursing Home Foundation and served as the General Secretary of Australian Chinese Community Association of New
South Wales. Mr. Chiu is an independent non-executive director of the CNOOC Limited.

Mr. Chiu Fan Wa, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, a member of the remuneration
committee and audit committee of the Company on 31 March, 2009. Mr. Chiu is a founder and the managing director
of Chiu, Choy & Chung C.P.A. Limited, and a partner of F. S. Li & Co,. He graduated from City University of Hong
Kong and obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree with major in accountancy in 1992 and was awarded a Master
of Professional Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2002. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an Associate Member of the Institute of the Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, a member of The Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors, an associate of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, United Kingdom, a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a Certified Tax Advisor.
Mr. Chiu is also an independent non-executive director of Kenford Group Holdings Limited which is listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Lam Yat Fai, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, a member of the remuneration
committee and a member of audit committee of the Company in 2004. He was appointed as a member of nomination
committee and risk management committee on 22 July 2009. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising). He
is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lam worked with Kwan Wong Tan & Fong and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for over 10 years. Mr. Lam has over 23 years of experience in auditing, taxation, corporate finance and
accounting. Mr. Lam is an independent non-executive director of Oriental Press Group Limited and on 8 March 2013,
Mr. Lam resigned as an independent non-executive director of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited, both of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (‘FYE2013” or the “Financial Year”) was a turning year for the Group. In the
financial year, the Group and Tianda Group completed the asset swap, pursuant to which, the Group disposed of
its entire interests in all businesses other than pharmaceutical business to Tianda Group, namely packaging and
printing business and mineral resources business, while Tianda Group transferred to the Group all the interests in
its pharmaceutical-related business, including the businesses and assets in Zhuhai, Hong Kong and Australia. In
September 2012, the Group officially changed its name as “Tianda Pharmaceutical Limited”, which reflects more
accurately the fact that the Group will focus on the operation of pharmaceutical and biotechnology businesses in the
future.

For FYE 2013, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$282.0 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 29.0%; a gross profit of approximately HK$144.3 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 9.9%;
and profit for the year attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$37.7 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 12.3%.

From 1 September 2012, the Group has successfully focused on pharmaceutical and biotechnology business. Since
five months have lapsed in the Financial Year until the disposal of the packaging and printing business and mineral
resources business, the continuing operation and discontinued operations are logically presented separately in these
financial statements. For the Financial Year, the continuing operation (pharmaceutical and biotechnology business)
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$180.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 85.2%; a gross profit
of approximately HK$124.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 71.0%; profit for the year attributable
to shareholders of approximately HK$24.3 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 26.2%. For FY2013, the
discontinued operations (packaging and printing business and mineral resources business) recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$101.8 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 66.1%; a gross profit of approximately
HK$20.3 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 76.8%; profit for the year attributable to shareholders
of approximately HK$13.4 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 43.8%. Excluding one-off income, the
discontinued operations would record the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$4.3
million, representing a significant decrease of 83.3% year-on-year.
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Report of the Chairman

The continuing operation (pharmaceutical and biotechnology business) recorded a significant growth in revenue, gross
profit and net profit, mainly due to the additional pharmaceutical assets, and the synergies generated by the integration
of the existing and additional pharmaceutical assets, which improved the overall efficiency and profitability. As for the
discontinued operations (packaging and printing business and mineral resources business), although the packaging
and printing business previously delivered strong revenue for the Group, in the face of intense competition in the
domestic industry, it was difficult for this business segment to wall off, thus the revenue and earnings therefrom will
potentially decline further in future.

A thorough analysis of the pharmaceutical and biotechnology business is set out below. Strategically, it is indeed
advisable for the Group to dispose of the packaging and printing business to focus on the pharmaceutical business,
which is beneficial to the future stable growth of the Group. The pharmaceutical and biotechnology business in
FY2013 mainly comprised of the existing pharmaceutical business (Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical) and the additional
pharmaceutical business (the newly-injected pharmaceutical business including Zhuhai assets). The thorough analysis
of the existing and additional pharmaceutical business shows strong growths and potentials of both. The existing
pharmaceutical business recorded a revenue of approximately HK$123.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 26.6%; a gross profit of approximately HK$95.1 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 31.2%; an increase
in the gross profit margin to 77.2% from 74.5% last year. As for the additional pharmaceutical business, if including
the profit for the five months immediately prior to the asset swap, the profit for the year would be HK$16.7 million,
representing an increase of 209% as compared to that of approximately HK$5.4 million for the calendar year 2011. It
shows that the existing and additional pharmaceutical businesses were benefited from the integration synergies. The
integration changed the previous distributor sales model of the Group. After the new assets were injected, the Group
will, based on its existing sales team in Zhuhai, gradually build and enhance its own sales team, thus improving the
overall marketing.

Synergies achieved initial success, which was reflected in the results including revenue, and also in other respects.
In particular, the Group’s flagship products - Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate for Injection previously accounted for more
than 90% of the total revenue from pharmaceutical business. After the integration, this percentage declined to about
60%, reducing the risk of over-reliance on a single product. In addition, the Group’s product mix was also improved,
expanding from traditional Chinese medicines and western medicines as well as biochemical medicines to cover
cardiovascular medicines, pediatric medicines, cold and respiratory system medication, anti-viral infective drugs,
medicines for drug treatment and health products.

In March 2013, the Group completed the acquisition of Cynergy Health in Australia, which expanded the Group’s health
products lines, and also strengthened the Group’s sales network in Australia, with strategic significance for Tianda
products to tap into the global market.

During the financial year, through a series of efforts, the Group will turn the page. As the packaging and printing
business and mineral resources business exited, the synergies of the newly injected and the existing pharmaceutical
business are continuing. Upon the completion of the integration of the newly acquired business in Australia, it is
expected to bring further synergies, thus laying a good foundation for the Group’s future growth.
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Report of the Chairman

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Through advanced researches, the Group finally determined pharmaceutical and biotechnology business as its core
business and underwent Business Restructuring accordingly with the support from its shareholders. The newly created
“pharmaceutical” afoot on a new path with a different structure and outlook. Also, the PRC government has set the
goal for developing a complete middle-class society in China as their top priority and will definitely put more resources
on medical and health benefits. With better income and improved living standards, awareness among and demand
on pharmaceutical from the public will continue to increase. With a population of 1.3 billion people, the potential of the
pharmaceutical market in China is huge. Similarly, there are opportunities for the pharmaceutical market with a number
of developing and emerging countries that are at the same development stage as China. The Group will capture the
right timing, overcome those challenges and further its development by diversifying product range, explore different
markets and seize mergers and acquisitions opportunities when available.

To diversify product range

The Group will further focus on research and development and continue its product diversification in different ways,
especially for products with larger market scale. Currently, the Group is researching on new drugs for tumor, diabetics,
cardiovascular disease, etc. and conducting second development for Yi An Decoction (with indication for asthma
added), Zhikang Granules (with indication for fatty liver disease added), etc. Cynergy Health, a company in Australia
recently acquired, has several healthcare product brands launched to the market for nearly twenty years, adding over
40 kinds of products to the Group’s product lines.

To explore markets

For the China market, the Group will continue to streamline and strengthen the intensive marketing model, that is,
different pharmaceutical subsidiaries under the Group will share benefits from “one” sales team and network; while
Hospital Business Unit focuses on hospital end operated on a proprietary basis; and Domestic Business Department
covers merchant sales. The Group will devote itself to basic drug market, form an OTC department in the right time
and steadily start drugstore chains as sales channels.

For the Australia market, based on the existing businesses of Cynergy Health, the Group will improve its product mix
and strengthen brand building with a combination of traditional sales channels and internet sales, to build marketing
group and distribution network of health products and OTC products.
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For Hong Kong, Macao, Taiwan markets and the international market, the Group will continue to introduce more
products to Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan markets, and gradually increase its sales shares. It will put more efforts
to explore the international market and promote international sales through suitable agents and distributors on a cost
effective and risk controllable basis. In 2012, the Group’s efforts to expand the international market started to bear
fruit, in particular, our flagship product - Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate for Injection was officially introduced in India,
which began to provide a steady source of income. In addition, the Group has entered into agreements with the
agents in many countries, including South Korea, the Philippines, the Dominican Republic, Kazakhstan and Russia,
to aggressively promote the introduction of “Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate for Injection” to these markets. In addition
to introduce its own products to the international markets, the Group is also actively identifying strategic partners to
introduce quality products to the international markets by leveraging on our strengths in the international market, thus
creating a win-win situation.

To seize mergers and acquisitions opportunities

Mergers and acquisitions can accelerate the development of the Group. The Group has been insisting on adopting
prudent strategies for mergers and acquisitions with a focus on synergy that emphasizes on quality rather the scale.
Followed by the acquisition of the business of Cynergy Health, a company providing healthcare products in Australia,
and made its first step to the capital market of international pharmaceutical and healthcare industry, the Group will
continue to make good use of its abundant fund and seek for suitable mergers and acquisitions projects in order to
boost the rapid growth.

Looking ahead, the Group will, by capitalizing on the blooming prospect in the pharmaceutical market in China
and utilize appropriate strategies, professional team and sound management to expand the presence of Tianda
Pharmaceuticals brands to everywhere around China step by step, and improve the sales performance and awareness
of Tianda Pharmaceuticals in the international market and bring out a bright prospect with high growth and high return
for Tianda Pharmaceuticals.

HerbValle
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKO0.41 cent (2012: final dividend of
HKO0.47 cent) per share for FYE2013, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2013 annual general
meeting. The final dividend is expected to be paid on or before 11 October 2013 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 24 September 2013.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank for the kind support to the Group from our customers, business partners,
staff and shareholders. Hope we will continue to cooperate, continue to put efforts to create a better future together.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

To consolidate the Group’s structure and core businesses and to focus on pharmaceutical and biotechnology business,
the Company had completed a set of transactions (the “Business Restructuring”) with Tianda Group Limited, the
ultimate holding company of the Company in August 2012. Namely, the Company acquired the entire equity interest
in a group of companies engaged in research and development, manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical products
(collectively as “Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group” hereafter) from the ultimate holding company, while at the same time,
the Company disposed of its interests in the packaging and printing business and the mining and energy business
back to the ultimate holding company.

In accordance with relevant listing rules and regulations, the Company had issued a circular to explain the details of
Business Restructuring on 30 May 2012.

In accordance with relevant accounting standards, the results of the packaging and printing business and the mining
and energy business have been accounted for as discontinued operations with only five-month results included for the
year ended 31 March 2013 (“FYE2013"), while full twelve-month results were included for the year ended 31 March
2012 (“FYE2012").

The result of continuing operations in FYE2013 only consist of the pharmaceutical and biotechnology business.

For FYE2013, the Group recorded revenue of HK$180.2 million while revenue for FYE2012 was HK$97.3 million
only, an increase of HK$82.9 million or 85.2%. Such increase was mainly attributable to the inclusion of HK$57.0
million being seven months revenue generated from the Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group subsequent to the Business
Restructuring. Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical Co., Limited (“Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical’, a business unit
acquired by the Group before FYE2012) recorded revenue growth of HK$25.9 million or 26.6% to HK$123.2 million for
FYE2013 (HK$97.3 million for FYE2012).

Gross profit increased by approximately 71.0%, to HK$124.0 million for the current financial year (FYE2012: HK$72.5
million). Gross profit margin decreased slightly from 74.5% to 68.8% for FYE2013. The slight decrease in gross profit
margin was partly due to amortisation expenses of HK$6.6 million incurred for those medical licenses and permits
acquired under the Business Restructuring. The adjusted gross profit margin for FYE2013 would be 72.5% if such
effect was excluded. The remaining 2.0% drop in gross profit margin was due to the slightly different products nature
of the newly acquired Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group, which are in large volume but lower gross profit margin. Again,
the gross profit margin (excluded the amortization of intangible assets) of Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical and Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Group for FYE2013 are 77.2% (FYE2012: 74.5%) and 62.3% respectively.

Other income mainly represented interest income of which maintained at the same level with approximately HK$5.9
million. Interest income was earned mostly from bank deposits with the remaining from debt instruments. As compared
to FYE2012, distribution and selling expenses and administrative expenses increased upon consolidation of the
business of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group which was newly acquired in FYE2013.

Profit for the year from continuing operations for FYE2013 amounted to approximately HK$50.8 million while that for
FYE2012 was HK$44.0 million.
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For FYE2013, profit for the year contributed from packaging and printing business was HK$8.0 million, while profit for
FYE2012 was HK$41.8 million. In addition, the gross profit margin of printing and packaging business also dropped
from 29.2% in FYE2012 to 20% in FYE2013 which resulted in the overall decrease in profit for the year. For mining
and energy business, it recorded a profit of HK$1.1 million for FYE2013 while there was a loss of HK$6.2 million in
FYE2012. During FYE2013, the Group had successfully disposed of an exploration right in Yunnan Province and
recorded an one-off gain on disposal of approximately HK$2.4 million. Also for FYE2013, the Group recognised
an one-off gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$7.9 million for the discontinued operation. Overall, the profit from
discontinued operations decreased from HK$35.6 million in FYE2012 to HK$16.9 million in FYE2013. If the above one-
off disposals in FYE2013 were excluded, the profit from discontinued operations would have been decreased by 81.5%
from HK$35.6 million to HK$6.6 million.

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company for FYE2013 amounted to HK$37.7 million. This compares
to that for FYE2012 of HK$43.1 million and represents a drop of 12.5%. Earnings per share for FYE2013 were HK2.02
cents while for FYE2012 was HK2.30 cents.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Pharmaceutical and Biotechnology

On 31 August 2012, the Company completed the Business Restructuring and acquired the entire equity in Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Group. Since then, the Group’s pharmaceutical and biotechnology business was carried out through
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group, where the production base and research and development centre is located in Zhuhai,
Guangdong Province, and Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical, which is located in Kunming, Yunnan Province.

The acquisitions enriched the Group’s product variety and mitigated market and operational risks through product
diversification. During FYE2013, the revenue from the major product, Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate for Injection,
accounted for 62.4% of the Group’s revenue compared with 90.8% in FYE2012. The contribution from Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Group’s major products, Tuoping (Valsartan capsules) and Tuoen (Ibuprofen suspension and drops)
in the seven-month since acquisition in aggregate contributed about 22.0% of the Group’s revenue in FYE2013. The
product mix would be more balanced should full year sales from Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group were included.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group

The Group started to consolidate the results of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group from 1 September 2012. Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Group is principally engaged in research, development, production and sales of pharmaceutical and
healthcare products in Hong Kong, the PRC and Australia. Revenue and profit for the period included in the Group’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income amounted to approximately HK$57.0 million. The net profit before
the fair value adjustments arisen from the Business Restructuring amounted to approximately HK$10.0 million.
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Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical

The Group owned 55% of equity interest in Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical. During FYE2013, Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical recorded revenue of approximately HK$123.2 million, representing an increase of 26.6% over that of
HK$97.3 million for FYE2012. Gross profit margin increased from 74.5% for FYE2012 to 77.2% for FYE2013. Net profit
was increased from HK$54.8 million for FYE2012 to HK$58.5 million for FYE2013 and the net profit margin decreased
from 56.3% to 47.5% respectively. After the Business Restructuring, Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical can share Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Group’s professional marketing team and distribution network across major provinces and cities
in China to sell its products, which facilitated market expansion and mitigated potential operational risks due to over
relying on its previous agent. The Group’s revenue contributed by Meng Sheng’s largest customer significantly diluted
from 88.9% in FYE2012 to 11.4% in FYE2013. At the same time, the new distribution arrangement would increase the
distribution and selling expenses in current financial year as a result of payment of servicing charges (which is payable
to Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group and eliminated at the Group’s consolidated result), sales commissions and other
sales supportive expenses. If the servicing charges were excluded, the net profit margin would improve from 56.3% in
FYE2012 to 57.2% in FYE2013.

The gross profit margin of Meng Sheng has improved from 74.5% in FYE2012 to 77.2% in FYE2013. Despite the
increase in production costs as a result of general economic factors such as raw material costs and labour costs
increase during FYE2013, Meng Sheng has managed to increase its product selling price for compensation and
transferred the inflationary pressure to customers and even achieved a slightly higher gross profit margin in this
reporting period.

Packaging and Printing

During FYE2013, the Group had three investments in packaging and printing business, namely, Cheng Cheng Printing
Group (which mainly consisted of 60% equity interest in Zhuhai S.E.Z. Cheng Cheng Printing Co., Ltd.), 25% equity
interest in Yunnan Huaning Xingning Colour Material Printing Co., Ltd. (“Xingning Printing”) and 18.75% equity interest
in Yuxi Globe Colour Printing Carton Co., Ltd. (“Globe Printing”). All these companies are principally engaged in
the printing of cigarette boxes and packs, and Cheng Cheng Printing Group is also engaged in the printing of other
consumer products.

All these three investments were disposed of on 31 August 2012 and the results of the packaging and printing business
ceased to be consolidated into the Group’s account since then. Its results were consolidated only for five months
for FYE2013 while for FYE2012, its full year results had been accounted for in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The disposal of the packaging and printing business resulted in a gain of approximately HK$5.3 million.

Cheng Cheng Printing Group

For FYE2013, revenue and profit for the year of Cheng Cheng Printing Group
included in the Group's accounts amounted to approximately HK$101.8 million
and HK$7.1 million respectively. For FYE2012, the corresponding amounts
were approximately HK$294.5 million and HK$35.3 million respectively. As a
result of keen competitions and rise in the costs of sales like material costs, the
gross profit margin decreased from 27.9% to 20.0% while the net profit margin
decreased from 12.0% to 7.0%.
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Xingning Printing

Xingning Printing reported the share of its result amounted to approximately HK$946,000 for FYE2013 while that for
FYE2012 was HK$1.4 million.

Globe Printing

The Group had an equity interest of 18.75% in Globe Printing and accounted it as an investment in an investee
company. Globe Printing typically distributed dividends in the first quarter of a year and no dividend income was
received before the disposal during FYE2013 while for FYE2012 recorded approximately HK$5.4 million.

Mining and Energy

During FYE2013, the Group operated its mining and energy business through its two non-wholly owned subsidiaries,
namely, Yunnan Tianda Mining Ltd. and Gansu Tianda Mining Ltd., of which the Group had an effective equity interest
of 51%. Respective tenements were either still under general geological surveys or at the stage of exploration
right applications and no revenue had been generated. The mining and energy business was disposed off on 31
August 2012 and no longer consolidated into the Group’s account from 31 August onward. The Group recognised
an extraordinary gain on disposal of approximately HK$2.6 million. Profit for FYE2013 from this business segment
amounted to approximately HK$1.1 million while that for FYE2012 a loss of HK$6.2 million was recorded. The profit
was mainly contributed by disposal of an exploration right of a tenement in Dongchuan District, Yunnan Province.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s liquidity remained healthy. As at 31 March 2013, the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$426.2 million (31 March 2012: HK$412.1 million), of which approximately 25.4%, 3.8% and 70.2% were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, United States dollar and Renminbi respectively with the remaining in Australian
dollar and Euro. The Group has no external borrowings during the year. Therefore, the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its obligations and daily operational needs.

EXCHANGE RATE EXPOSURE

The Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi, United
States dollar and Australian dollar.

The Group has sales and investments in foreign operations which use currencies other than its functional currency
Renminbi. As such, the Group has some exposures to foreign currency risk. The management from time to time
determines suitable measures, such as entering into forward currency contracts, to lessen exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations in material transactions denominated in currencies other than Renminbi. The Group did not enter into any
forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks as at 31 March 2013.

CHARGES ON ASSETS
The Group did not have any charge on assets as at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012.

EMPLOYEES

The Group employed approximately 491 employees in Hong Kong, China and Australia as at 31 March 2013. The
Group remunerates its employees based on market terms and the qualifications and experiences of the employees
concerned.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory standards and adhering to the principles of
corporate governance, emphasizing transparency and accountability to the shareholders.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices were amended and revised as the Corporate Governance Code (‘CG
Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules which became effective from 1 April 2012. The Company has complied with
the code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2013 except as mentioned below.

Mr. Fang Wen Quan is the Managing Director and the Chairman of the Company. Pursuant to paragraph A.2.1, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of an issuer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing. Having considered the current business operation and the size of the Group, the
Board is of the view that Mr. Fang Wen Quan acting as both the Chairman of the Board and as the Managing Director
of the Company is acceptable and in the best interest of the Group. The Board will review this situation periodically.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and oversees the businesses, strategic
development, financial performance and corporate governance of the Group. The management is delegated with the
powers and authorities for overseeing the day-to-day operation of the Group.

The Board currently consists of 6 Directors comprising 3 executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”) namely:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Li Suiming
Mr. Liu Huijiang

INEDs:

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa
Mr. Lam Yat Fai

The Board believes that the balance between executive Directors and INEDs is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient balance that protect the interest of the shareholders and the Group.

INEDs are appointed for a term of 2 years and are subject to retirement in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

More than one of INEDs have appropriate professional qualification in accounting or related financial management
expertise. Save as disclosed in the biographical details of each Director, there is no other relationship (including
financial, business, family, or other material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.
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The Articles of Association of the Company provide that one-third of all the directors shall retire from office by rotation
at each annual general meeting, and the INEDs are subject to this provision. The Company has received annual
confirmation of independence from the three INEDs in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has established a formal schedule of matters specifically reserves to the Board for its decision. The Board
reviews this schedule on a periodic basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the Board.

The Board has established procedure to enable directors, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances to enable them to discharge their duties at the Company’s expenses. The Articles
of Association of the Company contain description of responsibility and operation procedures of the Board. The Board
meets regularly to review the financial and operating performance of the Group.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties which are set out below:

+  develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations;
+  review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior management;

«  review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

+  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

+  review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Continuous professional development and training

Directors of the Company are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, and the business

environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

From 1 April 2012, Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.
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Directors’ training

Continuing education and information are provided to the Directors regularly to help ensuring that the Directors are
apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
businesses.

Based on the training records provided to the Company by the Directors, the Directors have participated in the
following training during the year:

Reading regulatory
Directors updates/attending in-house briefing
(Hours)
Executive Directors
Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman and Managing Director) 9
Mr. Li Suiming 9
Mr. Liu Huijiang 9
INEDs:
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong 12
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa 12
Mr. Lam Yat Fai 12

Directors’ meeting

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Board held 4 full board meetings. The attendances of the Directors
at the meetings are as follows:

Number of
Directors Attendance
Executive Directors:
Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman and Managing Director) 4
Mr. Li Suiming 1
Mr. Liu Huijiang 2
INEDs:
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong 4
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa 4
Mr. Lam Yat Fai 4

The Board has also established the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Risk
Management Committee which comprises a majority of INEDs. Each of these committees has its own terms of
reference to set out its specific duties and authorities and reports to the Board. For the terms of reference of each
committee, please visit the website of our Company www.tiandapharma.com.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company was established in September 2005 with specific written terms of
reference.

The remuneration committee comprises three INEDs of the Company, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong, Mr. Lam Yat Fai and Mr.
Chiu Fan Wa and one executive Director of the Company, Mr. Fang Wen Quan. Mr. Chiu Sung Hong is the Chairman
of the remuneration committee during the year.

The remuneration committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the
Company'’s policy and structure for the remuneration to all Directors and senior management of the Company and is
delegated by the Board the responsibility to determine on behalf of the Board the specific remuneration packages for
all executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year to review and make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors, the INEDs and senior management; and to review the

bonus to senior management.

Details of individual attendance of its members during the year are as follows:

Number of attendance
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman) 1
Mr. Fang Wen Quan 1
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa 1
Mr. Lam Yat Fai 1

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 12(a) & (b) to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established nomination committee in July 2009. It comprises two INEDs, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong
and Mr. Lam Yat Fai and one executive Director of the Company, Mr. Fang Wen Quan (who is the Chairman of the
nomination committee).

The nomination committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for Directorships with regards to their qualifications, skills, experience and
knowledge, assess the independence of INEDs, and make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer.

During the year, the nomination committee held 1 meeting. Details of individual attendance of its members are as
follows:

Number of attendance
Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman) 1
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong 1
Mr. Lam Yat Fai 1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three INEDs of the Company, being Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman), Mr. Chiu Fan Wa
and Mr. Lam Yat Fai.

The role and function of the audit committee include the followings:

+  review of and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standard;

«  review of the annual and interim financial statements prior to their approval by the Board, and recommend
application of accounting policies and changes to the financial reporting requirements; and

«  review of the Company’s financial controls, internal controls and risk management systems to ensure that
management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system.
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During the year, the audit committee held 3 meetings. Details of individual attendance of its members are as follows:

Number of attendance
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman) 3
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa 3
Mr. Lam Yat Fai 3

The work performed by the audit committee during the year under review, includes the followings:

+  review the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 and for the six months ended 30 September
2012.

+  consider and approve of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor.

+  review the internal control and financial reporting matters of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has established risk management committee in July 2009. It comprises two INEDs of the Company, Mr.
Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman of risk management committee) and Mr. Lam Yat Fai and one executive Director of the
Company, Mr. Fang Wen Quan.

The role and function of the risk management committee include the followings:

+ enhance and strengthen the system of risk management of the Group and provide comments and
recommendations thereon to the Board;

+ identify the risks of the Group and provide recommendations to the Board; and
«  other matters authorized by the Board.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors of the Company, they all confirm that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in relation to the audit and other services, including taxation services for the year provided by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the external auditor of the Company, amounted to HK$1,300,000 and HK$219,500 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that it is their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements. The
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with relevant regulations and applicable accounting principles. The Directors of the Company are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. The statement of the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 73 to 74.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system of internal control so as to ensure the
shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded. The system of internal control is
designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud. In addition, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system through the audit committee and the internal audit team of the Company. The Board
has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged and appointed Mr. Lo Tai On, a representative from an external secretarial services
provider, as the company secretary of the Company. The primary contact person with the company secretary of the
Company is Mr. Ng Chi Hung, deputy financial controller. Mr. Lo has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, other than the Company has changed its company name on 3 September 2012, there is
no change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our shareholders with detailed information about the

Company so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company employs a range of communication tools to ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key
business imperatives. These include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
Procedure for voting by poll had been read out at the general meetings. All votes of the shareholders were taken by
poll. The Company announced results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.
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An annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company was held on 24 August 2012, A notice convening the AGM
contained in the circular dated 25 July 2012 was dispatched to the shareholders together with the 2012 annual report.
A separate resolution was proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each separate issue, including re-
election of Directors. Mr. Fang Wen Quan, the Chairman and Managing Director and all INEDs attended the AGM to
answer questions raised from shareholders. Other Directors were unable to attend the AGM due to their other business
commitment.

Besides, an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) of the Company was held on 22nd June, 2012. Mr. Fang Wen
Quan and all INEDs attended the EGM. Other directors were unable to attend the EGM due to their other business
commitment.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group fully recognizes the importance of employing a professional, truthful and proactive attitude in promoting
investor relations. This underscores the Group’s persistence in maintaining optimum all-round communications with
investors, allowing it to collect information and valuable feedbacks from investors and announce its business strategy
and direction in due course. These efforts are critical for the Group to improve its corporate governance and strengthen
investor confidence.

Ensuring high corporate transparency is a key emphasis in the Group’s investor relations activities. During the year
under review, the Group promoted investor relations through different channels. Regular meetings are held between
the management and investors. Latest information regarding the Group and its business is proactively disclosed to
investors so that the best investment decisions can be made. Whenever announcements on annual results, interim
results and material transactions are made, the Group will capitalize such opportunities to enhance communications
with investors, explaining to them the Group’s latest operational situations and direction of development.

The Company also maintains a website at www.tiandapharma.com, where updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and news can always be found.

Shareholders and investors may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the board in writing through Investor
Relations & Corporate Communications Department whose contact details are as follows:

Address: Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
Fax: 2541 6558
Email:  investor_relations@tianda.com
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the
Board. An AGM of the Company shall be held in each year at such place as may be determined by the Board. Al
general meetings other than AGM shall be called EGM. Set out below are procedures by which shareholders may
(1) convene an EGM; (2) put forward enquires to the Board; and (3) put forward proposals at general meetings. The
procedures are subject to the Company’s articles of association and applicable legislation and regulations.

(1)

(2)

(3)

Procedures for shareholders to convene EGM

Any 2 or more shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition in aggregate not less than 25
per cent of such of the paid up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company.

Such requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the Company’s principal office in Hong Kong at Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei
Avenue, Central, Hong Kong.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene an
EGM, the requisitionists themselves may convene the EGM in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists
as a result of the failure of the Directors to convene such a meeting shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

The notice period to be given to all the registered shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised by the
requisitionist(s) concerned at the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal as set out in the Company’s
articles of association and the CG Code.

Procedures to put forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquires to the Board. All enquiries shall be in writing with the detail contact
information of the requisitionists through the Company’s principal place of business of Hong Kong at Suites 2405-
2410, 24th Floor, CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong or email to direct_enquiries@tianda.
com for the attention of the Board of Directors.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s articles of association or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for
shareholders to put forward new resolution at general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election as
director. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene an EGM for any business specified in
such written requisition.

The procedures for shareholder of the Company to propose a person for election as director is posted on the
Company website at www.tiandapharma.com.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are research and
development, production and sales of pharmaceutical, biotechnology and healthcare products.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by segment for the year ended 31 March 2013 is set out
in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 38% of
the Group’s total revenue while the largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 11% of the Group’s
total revenue. In addition, for the year ended 31 March 2013, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 32% of the Group’s total purchases while the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
8% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, any of their associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of
the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers during the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 75 to 76.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 6 to 7 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had retained profit available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie as
computed in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands of approximately HK$121,221,093. Moreover,
the share premium account of the Company may be distributed, provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. As at 31 March 2013, the Company’s share premium account amounted to
HK$257,839,900.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Fang Wen Quan (Chairman and Managing Director)
Li Suiming

Liu Huijiang

INEDs:

Chiu Sung Hong
Chiu Fan Wa
Lam Yat Fai

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Messrs. Li Suiming and Liu Huijiang will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

INEDs are appointed for a term of 2 years and are subject to retirement in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM have a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2013, the interests of the Company’s Directors, chief executives and their associates in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, were as follows:

Shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity Number of shares held %
Mr. Fang Wen Quan Held by controlled corporation 1,187,594,704 (Note 2) 63.50
Notes:

(1) All'the above shares are beneficially owned by Tianda Group Limited. Mr. Fang Wen Quan has 100% equity interests in Tianda Group Limited and, accordingly, is
deemed to have a corporate interest in the above shares owned by Tianda Group Limited.

(2)  All'the interests stated above represent long positions.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of a share option scheme (“the Scheme”) is to enable the Company to recognize the future and/or past
contributions of the participants (as defined in the Scheme and including any director and employee of any member
of the Group) to the Company, and to attract and retain such important participants and/or to maintain a continuing
relationship, with participants who have contributed to the result, growth, success and benefit of the Group, and in
relation to administrative staff, to recruit and retain experienced and talented individuals and/or to reward their past
contributions.

The Scheme is for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption on 13 July 2010. The directors may, at their
discretion, make an offer to any participant to take up options. An option is deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee upon his or her signing the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option and paying HK$1 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price for shares of the Company under the Scheme shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date (which
date must be a business day); (i) a price being the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the offer date;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the offer date.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10 per cent of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme. An option may be exercised
during a period to be determined by the directors in its absolute discretion and in any event such period shall not be
longer than 10 years from the date upon which the option is granted.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant under the
Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1 per cent of the total number of shares in issue of the Company. Any
further grant of options in excess of the 1 per cent limit shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting
with such participant and his or her associates abstaining from voting.

No share option has been granted since the adoption of the Scheme at an EGM held on 13 July 2010.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Scheme of the Company disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and none
of the directors nor any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for the securities of
the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2013, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO shows that the following shareholders had notified the Company of the relevant interests in 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company:

Name of shareholder Capacity Number of shares held %

Tianda Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,187,594,704 (Note 1) 63.50

Mr. Fang Wen Quan Held by controlled corporation 1,187,594,704 (Note 1) 63.50

South Hong Investment Beneficial owner 214,992,930 (Note 2) 11.50
Limited

Hongta Tobacco (Group) Held by controlled corporation 214,992,930 (Note 2) 11.50
Limited

Notes:

(1) These 1,187,594,704 shares are beneficially owned by Tianda Group Limited. Mr. Fang Wen Quan has 100% equity interests in Tianda Group Limited and,
accordingly, is deemed to have a corporate interest in the said 1,187,594,704 shares owned by Tianda Group Limited.

(2)  These 214,992,930 shares are beneficially owned by South Hong Investment Limited (“South Hong"). South Hong was beneficially owned as to approximately
92.28% by Hongta Tobacco (Group) Limited. Accordingly, Hongta Tobacco (Group) Limited is deemed to be interested in the 214,992,930 shares owned by South
Hong.
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All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 March 2013, no short position was recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other interest representing 5% or more in the
Company'’s issued share capital as at 31 March 2013.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Major connected transactions

On 30 March 2012, the Group entered into five sale and purchase agreements (“Asset Swap Agreement”) with
Tianda Group Limited (“Tianda Group”), the ultimate holding company of the Company, to dispose of its mineral
resources business and packaging and printing business in exchange for business relating to manufacture and sales
of pharmaceutical and biotechnology products (“Asset Swap”) at a consideration of HK$380,000,000, so as to realign
the Group’s business focus and resources in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology business in line with the Group’s
latest business strategy. The transaction was approved by independent shareholders of the Company on 22 June 2012
and the transaction has been completed on 31 August 2012. Details of the transactions are set out in the Company’s
circular dated 30 May 2012.

The above acquisition and disposals (in aggregate) constitute major transactions of the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules. Tianda Group, in which its entire equity interests are owned by Mr. Fang Wen Quan, the Chairman of
the Company, is interested in approximately 63.5% of the issued share capital of the Company. As such, Tianda Group
is a connected person of the Company and the above-mentioned transactions also constitute non-exempted connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with connected persons which constituted “continuing
connected transactions” under the Listing Rules. Details of this continuing connected transaction which is subject to
the reporting requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing Rules are summarized as follows:
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Purchases of the instruction leaflets and packaging boxes

On 12 November 2012, a framework agreement was entered into among X X & £ (¥% i3 ) & BR 2 & (Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) Company Limited) (“Tianda Zhuhai”) and 3%k /&8 4% 25 45 [ 35 Bk ED #2 B BR 2 & (Zhuhai
S.E.Z. Cheng Cheng Printing Company Limited) (“Cheng Cheng Printing”) for governing the transactions for
purchasing printed instruction leaflets and packaging boxes from Cheng Cheng Printing and specifying the terms
adopted including the annual purchase caps. Cheng Cheng Printing is a subsidiary of Tianda Group, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, it is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. It is also a connected
person of the Company because it is an associate of Hongta Tobacco (Group) Limited (“Hongta”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, this framework agreement and the transactions contemplated under this
agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. This
framework agreement was for the three financial years ending 31 March 2015. Details of the transactions are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 12 November 2012.

The annual cap and the actual amount of the above continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 March
2013 are shown as follow:

Business Type The annual cap The actual transaction amount

Purchases of instruction leaflets and HK$3,500,000 HK$1,593,831
packaging boxes

Sales of the instruction leaflets and packaging boxes

On 26 October 2011, a framework agreement was entered into among Cheng Cheng Printing and Tianda Zhuhai for
governing the transactions for manufacturing, printing and sales of the instruction leaflets and packaging boxes and
specifying the terms adopted including the annual sales caps. Before completion of the Asset Swap on 31 August
2012, Tianda Zhuhai was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tianda Group, the controlling shareholder of the Company, it
was a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and accordingly, this framework agreement and the
transactions contemplated under this agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. This framework agreement was for the three financial years ending 31 March 2014.
Details of the transactions are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 October 2011.
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The annual cap and the actual amount of the above continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 March
2013 are shown as follow:

Business Type The annual cap The actual transaction amount

Sales of instruction leaflets and HK$4,000,000 HK$1,890,518
packaging boxes

Purchase of materials and sales of package products and services

On 29 December 2011, a new framework was entered into among the Company, Cheng Cheng Printing and Hongta as (i)
the aggregate annual value of the transactions contemplated under the framework agreement entered into on 5 August
2010 for the two years ending 31 March 2013 may exceed the original projection; (i) the framework agreement would
expire on 31 March 2013; and (iii) it was expected that the transactions contemplated under the framework agreement
will continue to be entered into on a recurring basis. The new framework agreement was entered, before completion
of the Asset Swap, into for governing the ongoing purchase of materials and the sales of the package products and
services and specifying the terms adopted including the new annual purchase caps and the new annual sales caps.
Hongta is a substantial Shareholder indirectly holding approximately 11.50% equity interest of the issued share
capital of the Company and is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore, transactions
contemplated under the framework agreement constituted continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The new framework agreement was for the three financial years ending 31 March 2014. Details of the
transaction are set out in the Company’s circular dated 26 January 2012.

The annual cap and the actual amount of the above continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 March
2013 are shown as follow:

Business Type The annual cap The actual transaction amount
Purchase of materials RMB50,000,000 RMB12,730,104
Sales of package products and services RMB192,000,000 RMB34,161,826

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, INEDs have reviewed the above connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that:

1. these transactions were in the Company’s ordinary and usual course of business;
2. these transactions were entered into on normal commercial terms;

3. these transactions were carried out in accordance with respective agreement terms which were fair and
reasonable, and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have provided a letter to the Company’s Board of Directors
confirming that the above continuing connected transactions:

1. have received the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors;
2. arein accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;
3. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcement(s).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is based on their merit, qualifications and competence.
The emoluments of the directors are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics. No director or any of his associates and
executive is involved in dealing his own remuneration.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2013.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2013 have been audited
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

Fang Wen Quan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2013
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MEBEE. XZER-F—FARTT-AEARTEZRFRIE, WER"F——"F/\B=1t—H%
B XBFHBHERAATDARS —_FE——FHR=1THZER,

RIBLEHRAEUE, EREBERBESTHEBRARRDZEARS . FRDEERONELEHEGEHRE
BmZXAEE, REARXTBRITRAL63.5% PHEFED. ELL, RELEHRAF AT, RRXEERER
BZEREAT, BERRBITERARBDZIMBHEERS .

FHERERZ S

FW, FEBHEBEATETETXS, ZEXSRBELTRUBKR HEBERS | ZIFERERZHE
T EMRAISE 14A461RIE F 2 BERkRE, HEFBEMAT !
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REERERBERS

RIFB—"HF+—A+H, RAEEEBBRAR ([ XAEKE |) EEREQESEMENHERAR ([ #
BRENS | ) RISZAESR S, ISR ENEETEIRRIAER BESNRERZ R BRNZIER, BIFF
ERE LR, HRBRNBRANTDNERBRRRAEEERAR ([ XAEE | ) NEAR, HELHR
ATEAABNEEALT. SBRBETERAADTERFAZES (KB ) BREELE ([ A5 | ) AR
ALTMHRERIERTHBNEALT. Eit, WERBERRIRZGDEEE TR ZEMALTE LHRASE 14A
ETHFERERS . WERGFERREE_T—HAF=-A=1+—HLE=EHEFE. ZEFXBZFEH
RAXTDHPR-F——_F+—HA+-A2Za%.

BE"T-=F=RB=1t—HILFE, tRFEREXZZFE LRNEESESHIINT .

giEE SR BERZSEHE
RIS RS 3,500,00087¢ 1,593,831 787
HERRERARS

RIZF—F+B=+7\H, SREBERIKKETER RS, UEEEE. MRIREEZRBPENREE
BENXZRITBEMRZIER, BEFEHELR, ARE-F——F/\B=+—HHEEERA, XAK
BRARDERBRRRAREENEERBAS, HA LHRANTARTNREAL. FEit, WERBRER
RIBZ S EE TR Z B A AT E L HRAISE VAT THRHERER S . IERBEERAREE—T—N
F=A=1T—HLE=EMBFE. ZFX5ZHBHEREILTARR—F—F B+ BZRE.
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BETT=F=-RA=1t—HILFE, tRHEMEXZZFE LIRREESREIINT .

e FE LR BRZ5EHE

HERPERBER 4,000,000 &7z 1,890,518 #7T

RBRE R HE QR Em KRS

RIB—F+"AZ+NH, B()R-ZE—2F/\BARMTZERGRR FETXZHBE"_T—=
F=R=1t—HIMEMKFESFTFEEETRBBREE ; () ERBHEFR-F—=F=A=1+—H
[Ei 5 R (il TREBIELR 781 MRIET RSB MHEGERE, WARE). AR ELE ST IR ELR
HF. MERGEERREESIRAIT Y, BNASERERERNRIEEGRER IR, WETHBTER
ZIER, BIENEERBLRRTFEEHE LR, AERFERET, BEFERNTERTRAL11.50% Kk
&, WRBE LHRABSEARTZEEAL, B, RELHRUE VAT, ERGHRIE MUETZIRB BT
BRIERZ . FMERGBERAREE_T—NF=A=1+—HLE=ARBFE. ZEXZZFEHERELT
ABA—F——F—RA"t/ HZBXR.

BE—T=F=A=1—HILFE, tRFEREXZZFE LRRERSEHIINT .

¥i5iEm FEEER B E5HE
RIBER A ER#%50,000,000 75 ARi#£12,730,104 7T
HEOEERKIRE AE#192,000,000 75 AEH#534,161,826 75

RIZ EHARAISE 14A37 1R, BT EFEER LARMERZ MIFERER S, WHER .

1. ZRERBR/NERVZ—HRNRABERBRTET ;

2. ZERDIE—REEIFRETL ;

3. ZEXRZRIBERHRGET, MEZSEERBLATARE, UHFEANTINRRZERER .
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AT Z T - BERSEHMTEAARTEFSRE—IRY, ERLIAFERERS :
1. KHREARDEFGHE ;

2. FERRIZEEBBER ;

3. DIRBREZSTHZEMmELET ; R

4.  IEEBEBEASHIREZ LR,

FhEMEER

FEEHRET ZHFMBERTIZHERR . ERRENNE. EFRZFMIHFHESSTER, USELFRTZ
RERE. BARRERITENBR MBS BEES, WEOURSFIHBEAL, URTHRAESTFRER
KEZFHE

BRiEEE
AT BRI S H AP TREA AT ERERAIRSFR T RERRZ BB EBRE.

BHZARIGIE

RANT M AMENREEEHA, REE—S—SF=A=1+—HLLEERN, FAT—EERF LD
RIFFEREZ ARISRE .

23]

ARAINENBASEE_F—=F=ZA=+—HILFEZUBRRELHET - BERSTIHTER,
E - FERSSHITHERER, TAERKBEEREE. REERREFAE LERETHRERIUE
IB1EE) - ERS S TR AR ZZEET.

KEEFE
RREXGRAT

BEFER
BXHE

', “FT—=HF/,xA°+MNH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
EAVAEA TR

Deloitte.
=

TO THE MEMBERS OF TIANDA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS TIANDA HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 176, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

HMRAERBRAFRE
(ABRXXERERAT )
(R SFEEMMIZEBRAR)

EECBERENREFEITCERKELER
2E([ERT ] ) REWBLAT (KB 85
B | ) 2EaMBRE, 8ERIE—=F=
B=1+—Hz&auBikinE, REEZAL
FEZGFELENEER. GOERERERRE
FRERERXF, URETESHBERBMERE (D
(NEE=g =

EEMGEMBRRAREZRE

BRREFREERBEBEHAEEMZ
BERUBREEAREBATIRIIZIKERE
MHEEBMA TR GEHBRE, LUK
EERREGEUBRENFERRIREESE
=MEH T EAERRAMBLE 2 BEINER

=

ZHEIZ ST

ESZEARRBESERILFHZSHEAE
BREBXRER, LIRBETZEBIEIERD
EERRES, RUZIMEEMEBIE. EF
WAMAREZ AEEHETEMA TR BT
BEE. ESCREEBEHAGEHZE
BEREAETERZ. ZFENEXEFET
BfERTRE, WREINRPTERZ, LUSE
EEGASUBREES I FERAEREZRM
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ERVEEA TR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2013 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
24 June 2013
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BR. R IFreEMLESMRAZ S5t
BRZaEMRAEHZ @sHhst 2 S,
R FHEG S B RER 2 BREIIHmS .

E1EE, SEMEBZEREBERENREE

mﬁmvz§vuﬁku§@
ER
ESRA, ROUBERCRBEEMBES

EEJEfﬁ'ﬁ/ ‘Slzﬂﬂliﬂgé BEEER-E—=F
=R=+—HAZMBRREE BEEE&HEZA
IEFEZGFRRESRE, WELKREBRE
BB ZIRER EZ RRE

#E - -EERAE
BIEDETED

aTEm{T

]
—E-=HAT+IA



TIANDA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | KREXFGRANE —F—=55FF | 75

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

oIl ER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZ_—F—=fF=F=+—HIFE

NOTES

Vg
Continuing operations ISIBIRE RS
Revenue YN 7
Cost of sales HERA
Gross profit EF
Other income =0T N 8(a)
Other gains and losses Hitbes R E18 8(b)
Distribution and selling expenses DIEREESTH
Administrative expenses B
Research and development costs R M FAEE R A
Profit before tax PRI B
Income tax expense FriSfsz i 9
Profit for the year from continuing operations FHEREHER 2 REEiRF 10
Discontinued operations Sl cd—F 35
Profit for the year from discontinued operations RIS AFE R 1
Profit for the year REERF
Other comprehensive income Hitt2mas
Exchange difference arising on translation RirEmESE 2 ELELE
Reclassification upon disposal of subsidiaries HEMBATR

and an associate —REBEATFETDE  32(b)&(c)

Other comprehensive income for the year AEFEEEMEEILES
Total comprehensive income for the year AEELmMWETLEEE
Profit for the year attributable to: KEFE B

Profit for the year attributable to the owners
of the Company

— Profit for the year from continuing operations
— Profit for the year from discontinued operations

RABRREIE R FEEEF]

- FHECERBZ A FEIRT
- ERIEREEBZ AFERF

Profit for the year attributable to the owners
of the Company

KABRREIERFEEEF]

Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests {2 A1 25 FE( L AN EE S 257

— Profit for the year from continuing operations
— Profit for the year from discontinued operations

- FECEEBZ I FEER
- ERIEREEBZ AFERF

Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests JE1Z B RS FE( G AR B 25 F

2013
HK$
B

180,213,975
(56,181,034)

124,032,941
6,857,835
2,683,303

(28,258,018)

(39,969,473)

(2,489,689)

62,856,399
(12,097,888)

50,759,011

16,936,760

67,695,771

7,915,721

(5,036,086)
2,879,635

70,575,406

24,375,141
13,364,921

37,740,062

26,383,870

3,571,839

29,955,709

67,695,771

2012
HK$
BT

97,276,705

(24,805,834)

72,470,871
7,322,384
1,322,188

(1,359,973)

(19,401,138)

(1,538,579)

58,815,753
(14,847,303)

43,968,450

35,561,171

79,529,621

15,594,293

15,594,293

95,123,914

19,315,653
23,779,942

43,095,595

24,652,797
11,781,229

36,434,026

79,529,621
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ol

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

2013 2012
NOTES HK$ HK$
Bt BT BT
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: ANEFEE S ENZFARZEEREBR .
Owners of the Company Vi UNS | 39,345,859 52,468,500
Non-controlling interests JEspgiEsS 31,229,547 42,655,414
70,575,406 95,123,914
HK cents HK cents
&l W
Basic earnings per share SRESERN 13
From continuing and discontinued operations REFERS
RERIEREER 2.30
From continuing operations REFHECEER 1.03
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AREMESIRR

At31March 2013 [$—FE—=F=F=+—H

2012
NOTES HK$
By & BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M. RN 15 117,967,780 21,998,297
Prepaid lease payments FafEERE 16 90,761,957 3,922,633
Gooduwill BE 17 109,062,595 6,587,152
Intangible assets B EE 18 98,765,832 -
Rental deposit HERS 1,378,684 1,378,684
Deposit for acquisition of property, plant and equipment WIEB#I% . BB RREZIZE 7,202,187 -
425,139,035 33,886,766
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories =7E 22 33,309,688 7,846,402
Trade and bills receivables and other receivables FEW BRI FEW IR &
HABFEKER 23 27,130,041 4,469,252
Prepaid lease payments FEfREIE 16 3,153,484 97,530
Bank deposits RITER 24 243,456,573 322,548,263
Bank balances and cash IRfTESRNIES 24 182,682,184 89,594,058
489,731,970 424,555,505
Disposal groups classified as held-for-sale PEEARKELEEZHEAR 11 - 549,402,661
489,731,970 973,958,166
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade and other payables FE(TERFN R Bt FE(T R 25 55,025,764 12,787,102
Government grants — current portion BUAF4EN - BPEAER S 26 370,696 365,823
Amounts due to related companies FECREA TS 35(a) 926,236 -
Dividend payable to non-controlling shareholders FE(TIERRRIRER 2 IRE 28,016,609 -
Tax payable FEfIIRIE 11,363,415 7,222,354
95,702,720 20,375,279
Liabilities associated with disposal groups PEAFELEZLERR
classified as held-for-sale Bz & 1 114,602,492
95,702,720 134,977,771
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEREE 394,029,250 838,980,395

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERTEAE 819,168,285 872,867,161
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FaUBRIRER

At31March 2013 K _E—=F=F=+—H

NOTES
By

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Government grants — non-current portion BUrFA BN - IERDEAERD 26
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERRIEE(E 28
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXREE
Share capital %N 27
Reserves f#fE
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income S EERIFEHEZ HEAR!

and accumulated in equity relating to REMEEmK SRR R

disposal groups classified as held-for-sale RiEHRTERESEE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRBRRE(LERDS
Non-controlling interests JErpRtER
Total equity Eisiagm

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 176 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2013 and are

signed on its behalf by:

FANG WEN QUAN
BXiE

Chairman

BEER

2013
HK$
B

926,740
43,041,855

43,968,595

775,199,690

187,011,816
550,983,457

737,995,273
37,204,417

775,199,690

BRESEFIT6EZGENM
—=FARBITAEESTEHERIFESR

2012
HK$
BT

1,280,382

1,641,120

2,921,502

869,945,659

187,011,816
497,255,269

18,690,228

702,957,313
166,988,346

869,945,659

BBRERERZE

fio, WHTIIESARESTTRE .

CHIU SUNG

HONG

HER

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
II‘/j_D &74\'%5’“@%

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZ_—F—=fF=F=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRFRRERES

Amounts
recognised
in other
comprehensive
income and
accumulated
in equity
Capital Capital relating to Non-
Share Share  redemption ~contribution Special ~ Statutory  Exchange Accumulated disposal controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve Teserves reserve profits groups Total interests Total
HELR
REMSE
WamEER
BFBE EFHR RgREst
BE  RiiEE 1] e BHEE ZERE EREE RHEN 00 2Z¥E Fy 3 @5t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B B B B B B B B B B B B
Note (i) Note (ii)
] B (i)

At 1 April 2011 RZF—F&
mB—A 187,011,816 274,638,193 8,000 4,477,651 3460016 25,378,584 23018452 158,303,732 - 676296444 171,040970 847,337 414
Profit for the year NEERR - - - - - - - 43,095,595 - 43095595 36434026 79,529,621
Exchange difference arising 2B ELZ
on translation EREE - - - - - - 9372905 - - 9312905 6221388 15,594,293
Total comprehensive AEELENS
income for the year piare] - - - - - - 9372905 43,095,595 - 52468500 42655414 95123914
Transfer to reserves BNGE - - - - - 16,040,900 - (16,040,900) - - - -
Transfer upon deregistration  FRFHEEERC—E
of a subsidiary (Note (ii)) HBATIREA
(W& i) - - - - - S 069233 1069233 - - - -
Dividends declared to EEREERERR
non-controlling shareholders ~ B%&E. - - - - - - - - - - (46,708,038)  (46,708,038)
Dividend recognised as S 53 TH%&E-’PZ
distibuton - - - - - - - (2580763) - (2580763 - (2580763
Transfer to amounts }ﬁ)\ﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁf’ﬁ
recognised in other HEZHEMR
comprehensive incomeand  IREfh S TEIKIES
accumulated in equity RN
relating to disposal groups R ZFIE
classified as held-for-sale - - - - - - (18,690,228) - 18,690,228 - - -
At31 March 2012 RZE——F
=ZB=+—H 18701816 274,638,193 8000 4477651 3460016 41419484 12631896 160620029 18,690,228 702,957,313 166,988,346 869,945,659
Profit for the year REEHF - - - - - - - 37,740,062 - 37740062 29955709 67,695,771
Exchange diference arising ~ REIES Y
on translation EREH - - - - - - 7948193 - (1306310) 6641883 1273838 7915721
Reclassification upon REERBATRE
disposal of subsidiaries Eipr] - - - - - - - - (5,036,086)  (5,036,086) - (5,036,086)
Total comprehensive income ~ AL TIIE
for the year fare] - - - - - - 7948193 37740062  (6342,396) 39345859  31,229547 70,575,406
Appropriation of maintenance  ERAEES Y
and production funds HE (K
(Note i) . . . . o 59629 o (59%62) . . . .
Utilisation of maintenance ~ #BREEEEZ
and production funds P8 Btz (i)
(Note i) . . . . S ) S B3 . . . .
Transfer upon disposal o~ HEEFBAEIRE
subsidiaries BA - - - - - (168254%) - NATINE  (123478%) - (MTOMETY) (M7 911879)
Dividends declared to BERHERER
non-controlling shareholders ~ BRE. - - - - - - - - - - (43,101597) (43101,597)
Dividend recognised as RO TREER L
distibution Be . . . - - - - (8789,555) - (8789555) - (878955)
Deemed capital contribution  1EESEIEIR
from ultimate holding ARHE
company (BzE320) R
(note 32(b) and 32(c) 20)) - - o 4481656 . - - - o 4481656 o 4081656
At 31 March 2013 RZB-=f

=ZH=+—B8 187,011,816 274,638,193 8000 8959307 3460016 25092284 20,580,089 218,245,568 - 137995273 37204417 775,199,690
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
l\\TD*&E’gE'%EJJ%

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

Notes:

(i

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal amount of the share
capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount of the share capital of a subsidiary acquired
by the Company pursuant to a corporate reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1992.

The statutory reserves represent (1) the appropriation of certain percentages of profit after taxation
of the subsidiaries established in the Mainland of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) as
recommended by the directors of those subsidiaries based on the PRC statutory financial statements
and (2) provision for production safety being accrued by the Group at fixed rates based on operating
revenue (“the maintenance and production funds”), which is transferred from accumulated profits
to the specific reserve and could be utilised when expenses and capital expenditures in production
maintenance and safety measures are incurred.

A subsidiary of the Company with functional currency of RMB was deregistered during the year. The
cumulative exchange difference arising from translation of its financial statements to HK$, presentation
currency of the Group, was released to accumulated profits.

BHaE

il

(ii)

FEBZSHRBDAADRE-ESEHEAATR
BR—NAN—FEEBHEXZMERAT) LHmiE
T ABEMERBEITZRABEREME—BREL
SZRAEEME B EE.

EEEETE(NRTEARKNE ([ FE | ) Al
M2 MBABSZ B RIETREZEMBREZ 2R
EXRMEERZEMWBAD RGN FLETE
DHZDER QEELEZBHEDAEBLIEE
EREEREIENEES ([ #EREERES ), B
FETBNERENREA, BEREEEERZEER
EERIREFZHIFEA.

AR —BUARBANEEENNEATRFEAZ
HEL. ANEMBREREATEHZ2IERET
FRELEZ REtEREER RHETERR.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERSRER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZ_—F—=fF=F=+—HIFE

2013 2012
NOTES HK$ HK$
Vg BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERE
Profit for the year REE T 67,695,771 79,529,621
Adjustments for: R TINSEFRZRHEE .
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FafTHEERIa 1,934,334 311,023
Amortisation of intangible assets S EEHE 10,334,261 9,794,471
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE. MERBEZINE 9,073,914 13,899,669
Dividend income from available-for-sale investments ~ BRI HEREZ BB
— investment in an investee company - R—EwEQARZKE = (5,426,585)
Gain on disposal of exploration and evaluation asset ~ tHEERIER R FH L B E Z W ZE (2,383,728) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZ S (12,305,012) -
Government grants released to income BUS R BN EIRN (362,898) (358,706)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of exploration ~ BLENRKRFHEEERRZ
and evaluation assets BRI = 3,851,286
Income tax expense FriSiR 18,663,152 23,172,697
Interest income on bank deposits IRITEAMBUN (6,599,795) (8,033,333)
Investment income on available-for-sale investments ~ FIEHEREZIRERAN (1,534,918) (1,676,760)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME. RERREZ
53] 168,522 100,562
Share of results of an associate ElE—EEE T ES (946,190) (1,369,877)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEE R LS
working capital RERE 83,737,413 113,794,068
Decrease in inventories =Pl 21,371,537 20,504,099
Decrease (increase) in trade and bills receivables FEWIBR SR % FE W ZE 4%
and other receivables R E KU (1) 3,334,296 (19,599,561)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from FEW BEE N TIFRIE
related companies > (1500 ) 37,514,112 (19,762,904)
Decrease in trade and other payables FET BRI EL Mt (T TR > (5,906,670) (485,859)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to FEfIBIE LN TIFRIE
related companies &0 (R ) 6,304,526 (4,122,517)
Cash generated from operations REERES RS 146,355,214 90,327,326
PRC income tax paid B REFER (18,453,334) IRCIRVLREY

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEREEEZIRERE 127,901,880 66,281,588
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GoRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

2013
NOTES HKS$
BEEE B
INVESTING ACTIVITIES IREEE
Cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
ZIRERE 32(b)&(c) (48,442,229)

Net cash outflow from acquisition of WEBHI B NE] EEmimd

subsidiaries/business ZIREFEE 32(a)&(d) (47,628,323)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment IEBEWE. MELEE (7,006,757)
Advance payment for property, plant and equipment  #13. BB K EEEZ BEK (6,685,245)
Expenditure paid for exploration and evaluation asset  SZ{JEfIR R 3L B E Z BIsT (4,186,258)
Additions to intangible asset REETEE (2,416)
Net increase in bank deposits IRITEAUBINEEE 23,166,236
Interest received BIFIE 6,599,795
Dividend received from an available-for-sale investments ER[{tHEREWENZ IRE

— investment in an investee company -R—ERREA T ZIRE 5,369,982
Net proceeds from redemption of available-for-sale B[Ol n SR E 2 FrfSTE

investments b 2,479,076
Proceeds from disposal of exploration HERIRNHLEEZ

and evaluation assets FrSs1E 2,454,289
Investment income received [Shesta=1 1,534,918
Dividend received from an associate El—EBE AT Z’RE 1,517,660
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME. MENEREZ

equipment FriSsr1g 32,508
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES IREREFMAZIRE R (70,796,764)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES E=ES
Dividend paid to shareholders B ESZN P IS (8,789,555)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders BE|2E G E SR N pdiIs (4,072,363)
Repayment to ultimate holding company B FREERAT =
Loans advanced from ultimate holding company BRERA ATV ZER -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BE XA ZIRE 8 (12,861,918)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND HeRRE£%EIER

CASH EQUIVALENTS tgnn (i ) BEE 44,243,198
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING RENZRER

OF THE YEAR He&%EIER 139,345,117
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES #MEFESREEh > 52& (906,131)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RELZIRER

OF THE YEAR HE&%(EIER 182,682,184
Represented by: PATFIIRIENE -

Bank balances and cash IRITERNIRE 182,682,184

Cash and cash equivalents included in RekReESEER (8E

disposal groups held-for-sale REEHEZ HEABIN )

182,682,184

2012
HK$
BIT

(5,813,544)
(7,723 413)
(2,368,324)

(13,225,140)
8,033,333

5,066,904
1,155,156
1,676,760
1,802,513
8,213
(11,387,542)
(25,807,631)
(24,326,963)
(11,530,302)
14,322

(61,650,574)
(6,756,528)

142,808,417

3,293,228
139,345,117

89,594,058
49,751,059

139,345,117
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK”). Its ultimate holding company is Tianda Group Limited
(“Tianda Group”), a private limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong, which is ultimately controlled by Mr. Fang Wen Quan. Its name
was changed from “Tianda Holdings Limited K AIZRBRAE] to
“Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited XA ZE3EF PR 2 E] " with effect from
3 September 2012. The address of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed on page 2 of the annual
report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”). As the
shares of the Company are listed in the SEHK, for the convenience of
the financial statements users, the results and financial position of the
Group are expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), the presentation
currency for the consolidated financial statements.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38.

On 30 March 2012, the Company entered into five sale and purchase
agreements (“Asset Swap Agreement”) with Tianda Group to dispose
of its mineral resources business and packaging and printing business
in exchange for business relating to manufacture and sales of
pharmaceutical and biotechnology products (“Asset Swap”), so as to
realign the Group’s business focus and resources in the pharmaceutical
and biotechnology business in line with the Group’s latest business
strategy. The transaction was approved by independent shareholders of
the Company on 22 June 2012 and the transaction has been completed
on 31 August 2012.

On 6 March 2013, Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) Pty Limited
(the “Tianda Australia”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, has entered into an acquisition agreement with independent
third parties (“Cynergy Group”) for acquisition of a business. The
transaction has been completed on 12 March 2013. Details of the
transaction are set out in note 32(d).

In preparing the Group’s annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2012, the assets and liabilities attributable to the
mineral resources business and packaging and printing business had
been classified as disposal groups held-for-sale and were presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2012. Profit/loss for the years ended 31 March 2013 and
2012 from the mineral resources business and packaging and printing
business have been presented as profit for the year from discontinued
operations and are presented separately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

—RREIE

RAKRDE—BRASESHMMAMZZA
RERAT, ERIOREBHEXZMN
BRAT ([ HEBHZFR]) L. H&
BERATDABRIKEBERAT ([ XX
£38]), —RBREBHAMAMZIAAT
RAT, HANEEEREEH., BZ
FE—"FHhB=H&E, H&MHA] Tanda
Holdings Limited K XK1= R BIR A F | B
A [ Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited R A ZE2E
BIREAT | AATZHEAMPEERETE
I IR REE 8 IR EE .

ARBVZPEEB[ARE . HREAR
BZBRHOREBBR LN, BI5EH
BREZERAERE, ~EBZEER
BBEARIRIILUE T (G EMBRERZE
wEH) 25,

RRBDD—HKREERAT. EEEMN
BATZ EBENRMIFE8,

RZEBE-—_F=B=+H, AQA8HEX
REBET VAN EE RS (| EEERH
#|), ERHEHBERREBREE
EPRIZFS, WRNAREERHEEHE
SMERZEE ([ BEER ), LIEE
AEBEBEEMEBEBEMNRE
R, BAEESRMEBRRE—H. &X
ZER"E——_FAA"+-HEXRRX
BERE#ME, WER-F—"F/\
B=t—B%lx%.

RIFE—=F=A/H, RA&EZ(®
AR ) BRAB ([ RKEM )AL
AZEESENBLAR) BBYE=
([ Cynergy Group | ) 57 3z W B& 17 5%, WX
B—IHXH, ZXBERTFE—=F=
B+ZHXMK. %X B2 BEHRMEEF
32(d)
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ERREBRORNREBELZEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire MRk

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=F=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following
amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of

2.

e RAEET 2 EBMBREE
Bl ZFER

RAEFE, FEECERERATIRE
BRI ARG BB S BREER
ELE

ER Gt 2R IRFERLIE - W [0l

Underlying Assets E125RERT A HEEEE
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures EBMBREEN SMIE . KE-
— Transfers of Financial Assets FTIRIEETA EESRIEE

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKFRS 7
“Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets” in the current year. The
amendments increase the disclosure requirements for transactions
involving the transfer of financial assets in order to provide greater
transparency around risk exposures when financial assets are
transferred.

The Group endorsed bills receivables to suppliers to exchange for goods
from those suppliers which transferred the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from those bills receivables to the respective suppliers on a
full recourse basis. As the Group has not transferred the significant risks
and rewards relating to these bills receivables, it continues to recognise
the full carrying amount of the receivables, and the associated trade
payables.

The relevant disclosures have been made regarding the transfer of
these bills receivables on application of the amendments to HKFRS 7
(see note 33). In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in
the amendments to HKFRS 7, the Group has not provided comparative
information for the disclosures required by the amendments.

PBRULTES, RERRBHFETNE
BUBERSENHAEBBNRZAE
FEEZHMBRERRRE SiEEH
BHRENRERBERTE,

BEMBREENETIRETE[ #
R-EEsMEE |

rEERTIFEEBREREBMBERS
ERBTRET A RE - BESRE
E . ZFETENSRSMEESER
BZBERE, SERSHEEREE
K, RSERAENSEHE.,

rEERHEREEBKRRRUIENE
m, BEERBKRBEEOHMMHERDEEZ
HuEeHEREERLZFREZRK
RRERBOSHEFR . HRAERI
BEEEZSRUERREBNEXER
MER, REBEFEIRELBIEH
SHRASRNBEE B EATIR,

EEREBMBREENETRIET A
FEWREZ EEFHARKRE( R
33), IRIBEBHBREERETIRIETT
RZBEEX, AEEWERETERZ
REEKRMEHAHLRER
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. IRTREETZBEBMBHREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) RBIZFER (&)
(continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective EIEMEE R ER Z T REERT
HEMBREEN
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised AEBULERERRMATIIEEMERER
standards, amendments and interpretation that have been issued but SR AT RIEFT R BT ARG
are not yet effective: =
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs EBUBREEN ZFEFENEE
2009 - 2011 Cycle? BRI A “E—FEH
HEBUBRE
£ Z FESUE?
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets EBUBREER  IKE - IKHER
and Financial Liabilities? ETIRIEETA EERESHEE?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 EBUBREELN FEMBRESEL
and HKFRS 7 and Transition Disclosures* BIRREBHE FEIEzEH
REERET IR EHHBRBE
BRI AR P EE
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, EEUBREEN SEMBERE.
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of F£1058. S BEHE IR
Interests in Other Entities: B F3ER EE #E R Hih Bt .
Transition Guidance? BNRERES BIEIES|?
B 75 S AR
VA PN
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities® EBUBmEELN REEE®
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 F105E5. B
B RS RS R
12N EB
R RIS 27 57
BRI A
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* EBUBERE ERITE!
#ZRIFE 95
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements? EBMBRSE GEMBRE?
RIS 1058
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? ERUBRS e
ZRIZE 1158
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities? EBUBERSE EEH B REER?
R 1238
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement? EBMBRE NREEEE?

HERIZE 1358
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective(continued)

HKAS 19
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive Income'
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities®
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets®
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine?

Levies®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

T REET 2 B EBUHBMEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

«  HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

«  The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities relates to the presentation
of changes in the fair value of a financial liability (designated as
at fair value through profit or loss) attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for financial year ending 31 March
2016. The adoption of this standard is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial positions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=F=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011).

With regards to the consolidated financial statements of the Group, the
key requirements of HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements
and HK (SIC) - Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS
10 includes a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.

These standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 April 2013. The application
of these standards is not expected to have a material impact on the
results and financial position of the Group. The application of HKFRS
12 will result in more extensive disclosures relating to non-controlling
interests of the Company’s subsidiaries in the consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for the statement of
comprehensive income and income statement. Under the amendments
to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed as
a ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning 1 April 2013. The presentation of items of other comprehensive
income will be modified accordingly when the amendments are applied.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine applies to waste removal costs that are incurred in surface mining
activity during the production phase of the mine (“production stripping
costs”). Under the interpretation, the costs from this waste removal
activity (“stripping”) which provide improved access to ore is recognised
as a non-current asset (“stripping activity asset”) when certain criteria are
met, whereas the costs of normal on-going operational stripping activities
are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 2 Inventories. The stripping
activity asset is accounted for as an addition to, or as an enhancement
of, an existing asset and classified as tangible or intangible according to
the nature of the existing asset of which it forms part.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. HEIREET 2B EBMIBZREE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BIZFERM (&)

(continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a &8 (ERMBRERERESY )-

Surface Mine (continued) REE 0 IREBXRIRBEIZEEMREZ
SRR (1)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 is effective for the Group for annual period beginning BB (EBUBREREREY)- 28

on 1 April 2013. Specific transitional provisions are provided to entities FARRAEE_ZT—=FNE—HH

that apply HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 for the first time. However, HK(IFRIC) - Int MFERREN, RERERES

20 must be applied to production stripping costs incurred on or after the (BB BRERERZEE)- REF2

beginning of the earliest period presented. The directors assessed that RZEBRHERBBERY. BE, &

the application of the amendments will have no material impact on the B(ERMBRERERET ) - RES

Group’s consolidated financial statements. 0RMEERARRRHERPERADS
ZEEEZEERNIRRAEA. EETM,
ERBRETAFTEHAEBRZFEE
BHREEREARE,

The directors anticipate that the application of the other new and revised EEEH, EREMIETREEITES

HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial PHBREENEISHESUBERRE

statements. RERTE,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFHBR

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

GEMBRERDIRBEBEMLEE
BBV BRSENRR. W, &
EMBRERAEEBHIMES LHR
AR BB ARNRAIPTREZ BRIKRE.

GEMBREDRBELH SRR, %
LTEBEREEZSBOER T ELL
RABEFTERRSIN . BELEHE—KRLA
ENZZARENBZARBERER.

The principal accounting policies are set out below. FESFBEREIIN T,
Basis of consolidation GRS

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value at the except that deferred
tax assets or liabilities and liabilities are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable,
on the basis required by another standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the “measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the
end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting
is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the relevant cash-generating units (“CGU”) or groups of CGUs, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale
(in which case it is accounted for under HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations). Under the equity method,
investments in associates are initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of an associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the associates recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group losing significant
influence over that associate, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses
significant influence over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’ consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-
current assets and disposal group are available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal group classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. An impairment loss is made for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the non-current asset and disposal groups to
fair value less costs to sell.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following conditions
are satisfied:

«  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

«  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold;

+  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

«  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit and loss.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

«  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;
«  theintention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

«  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

«  how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

+ the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

«  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the
asset is derecognised.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on initial
recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration and evaluation
assets are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Costs of exploration are capitalized pending a determination of whether
sufficient quantities of potentially nonferrous metal reserves have been
discovered.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of exploration
rights and the expenditures incurred in the search for nonferrous metal
resources as well as the determination of the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of extracting those resources. When the technical
feasibility and commercial viability of extracting nonferrous metal
resources become demonstrable, previously recognised exploration and
evaluation assets are reclassified as tangible assets. These assets are
assessed for impairment before reclassification.

FESEBR (&)
EIZBHRNEERSE

EBRCHMUBELEEEBESRE
R, WEHRKERBZAREE (RS
HEA ) ETSHR

RYLHERE, AERFEFHERZER
B ERRp A R E MR QREHRE
BEREEYIR. IERFHERZERE
EDNEEREEREMFIERFHER
B, k2, IERFHERZELE
EERRANRHEAHEZ R RERBE
PR ( R XBRBEEREREERER
BRYEETER ).

B EERHEHRFARRREISRHE
A EEEREBFEREILEDR. &
ILERBREEMEEZBENIREE
PiSRIERENRZEERAEBEZEESE
T8, WRZEERKILEIREBZIE
PR .

BRREEE

VIR R 5T B ER V) S e R RS LUk A
Bo ML HERE, BIRNFTFEEEL
PR AR AR RETREBEANR. EIRK
EREAMEBRRNEEEREHUS
NEBETEeEBRHE.

BR N EERERBEZ AR
SREeTBREERRELUNETRRZ
FERZ KM TTEREGETTERA
<. ERREeEBRERRZ
KT TEREEATHEUREER,
Al Z R BRR L EEEHR D E
REWEE. LFEEAEHHENE
EITRERE .




98

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire MRk

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Exploration and evaluation assets (continued)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets is
reviewed annually. Impairment test is performed in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” whenever one of the following events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable (the list is not exhaustive):

«  the period for which the Group has the right to explore in the
specific area has expired during the period or will expire in the near
future, and is not expected to be renewed.

«  substantive expenditure on further exploration for and evaluation
of mineral resources in the specific area is neither budgeted nor
planned.

«  exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific
area have not led to the discovery of commercially viable quantities
of mineral resources and the Group has decided to discontinue
such activities in the specific area.

+  sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development in
the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in full
from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when an entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related
companies, bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy in impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (‘FVTPL”), loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in change in fair value of
available-for-sale investment reserve, until the financial asset is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in change in fair value of available-for-sale
investment reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments (investment in an investee
company) that do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

+ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

+  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For financial assets including trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in the other
comprehensive income and accumulated in change in fair value of
available-for-sale investment reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that from an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, dividend payable
to non-controlling shareholders, amounts due to related companies,
amount due to ultimate holding company and loans from ultimate holding
company are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the Group’s
obligation are discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
cost of completion and cost necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill, exploration and evaluation assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

From 1 April 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a foreign operation
(i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), exchange
difference accumulated in equity arisen from the translation of the
subsidiary or associate’s functional currency, RMB, to the Company’s
functional currency, HK$, before the change in functional currency of the
Company from HK$ to RMB, are reclassified to profit or loss. Whereas
exchange difference accumulated in equity arisen from the translation of
subsidiary or associate’s and the Company’s functional currency, RMB,
to the Group’s presentation currency, HK$, was transferred directly to
accumulated profits.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plan and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next financial
year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment

Determining whether an impairment is required requires an estimation
of recoverable amounts of relevant intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment or the respective CGU in which the goodwill, intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment belong, which is the higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. If there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired, recoverable amount shall be estimated
for individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, the Group shall determine the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the relevant assets or the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The discount rate
represents rate that reflects current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset or the CGU for which the
future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected or there is a downward revision
of future estimated cash flows due to unfavourable changes in facts
and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation of the relevant assets and respective
CGU are disclosed in note 17.

No impairment loss is recognised during the years ended 31 March 2013
and 2012. An amount of goodwill of HK$44,550,363 at 31 March 2012
has been classified as held-for-sale as explained in note 11(a) and was
disposed of upon completion of the Asset Swap on 31 August 2012.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using straight-line method, at the rates ranging
from 3% to 33.33% per annum. The estimated useful lives that the Group
depreciates the property, plant and equipment reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the assets. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in
useful lives and therefore depreciation and impairment losses in future
years.

As at 31 March 2013, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is HK$117,967,780 (2012: HK$86,889,028). An amount of
HK$64,890,731 at 31 March 2012 has been classified as held-for-sale
in note 11 and was disposed of upon completion of the Asset Swap on
31 August 2012. Details of the useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment are disclosed in note 15.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders value. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital, accumulated profits
and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the
Group’s business. The directors of the Company also balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends, new share issues as well
as the issue of new debts.

4.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. EFRITH
a. Categories of financial instruments a. ZRTRER
Financial instrument 2012
classification HK$
EMTERSE BT
Financial assets
EHEE
Trade and bills receivables and other receivables* Loans and receivables 24,209,532 1,428,301
FEMT AR R A FE AT =4 e LAt FEE Wk (= eI EN
Bank deposits Loans and receivables 243,456,573 322,548,263
RITE B FEWGR
Bank balances and cash Loans and receivables 182,682,184 89,594,058
IRfTESRRIRS £ EN
Loans and receivables classified as held-for-sale Loans and receivables 234,272,981
BN EWAR S ERIHEHE eI EN
Available-for-sale investments classified Available-for-sale
as held-for-sale investments 32,465,141
AR ERESFERIFIFHE AHERE
450,348,289 680,308,744
* Excluding prepayments and deposits
* FEEBIRIERES
Financial liabilities
ERaE
Trade and other payables* At amortised cost 14,945,875 8,033,651
FETRRFR R EL AR (7R FRIEH R AN
Amounts due to related companies At amortised cost 926,236 -
FEAIRRELBIFRIE PRI R AN
Dividend payable to non-controlling shareholders At amortised cost 28,016,609 -
FEFTAFERRAR R 2 AR R TR R AN
Included in disposal group classified At amortised cost

as held-for-sale

BERS RS FHEZHERRN R

85,701,265

43,888,720 93,734,916

Excluding accruals, deposits from customers and value added tax payables

* TREETRIE, FR RS URECISER
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=F=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include investment in
an available-for-sale investments — investment in an investee
company, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from (to) related companies, bank deposits and bank balances,
trade and other payables, amount due to ultimate holding company,
loans from ultimate holding company and dividend payable to non-
controlling shareholders. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. It is, and has been throughout
the year, the Group’s policy not to enter into trading of derivative
financial instruments.

The risks associated with these financial instruments include credit
risk, market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk) and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner. For the purpose of analysing these exposures,
financial assets and liabilities included in disposal groups classified
as held-for-sale are excluded.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to perform an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group requires some
of its customers to make prepayment on their purchase of
pharmaceutical products. And the management has delegated
a team responsible for the determination of credit limits for other
customers, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical location
is in the PRC, which accounted for 100% (2012: 100%) of the total
trade receivables as at 31 March 2013.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

At 31 March 2013, the Group has concentration of credit risk
relating to trade receivables as 37.2% (2012: 92.7%) of the
outstanding balances is due from five (2012: two) external
customers in the PRC. Other than several major customers, the
exposure is widely spread over a large number of customers during
the current financial year after the completion of the Asset Swap on
31 August 2012.

During both years, the Group purchased from banks certain short-
term investment products whereby the return was determined with
reference to the prevailing market interest rates and performance
of the underlying investments invested by the bank. The principal
was not protected by the banks. The management of the Group
considered that the risk is limited as the banks are reputable
financial institutions in the PRC. No investment products were held
by the Group as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies or state-owned banks located in the PRC.

Market risks

(i)  Currency risk
Certain bank deposits and trade and other receivables and
other payables of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EMTHE)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HFRAKREEFERHBE(E)
Market risks (continued) hiSERE (&)
()  Currency risk (continued) () EEmEE(E)

RIBEHR, SEELIIMNET]

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the BzEHREEREBAEZR
end of the reporting period are as follows: HEWNT .

Assets Liabilities

BE afE

2013
HK$

BT

2013
HK$
#

HK$ BIT 108,180,221 226,051,253 177,843
United States Dollars ES

(‘Us$”) 16,008,386 34,236,526 = -
Euro (‘EUR’) B 9,196 = -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 4%
(2012: 4%) increase and decrease in RMB, the functional
currency of the respective group entities, against the relevant
foreign currencies for the years ended 31 March 2013
and 2012. The sensitivity rate represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates with reference to historical fluctuation of
foreign exchange rates during the year. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at 31 March 2013 and 2012 for a corresponding change in
foreign currencies rates. A negative number below indicates
a decrease in post-tax profit for the year where the RMB
strengthens against the relevant currencies. For a weakening
of RMB against the relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

TEHINAEFHEEZE-FT—=
ER-E—"F=B=+—H
IFTFEARKE(EHEEEREE
ZINBEE K ) STHEREISMEE L N
R Dan( —FB—"F . 4%)
ZHRE. RERIEESERE
2EENBEERKSMEE
KA R EBEEE Z 5.
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=t+—HHERZEEESAE
BHBRE, HARBIHEBE
BAE, ILNTasEREAE
EZRESFRL. MARK
REEEREE, THA

FEZRESVNEERERE
REE,
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT
HK$ BT (3,607,000) (7,462,000)
us$ =TT (535,000) (1,143,000)
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risks (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (continued)

The balances of bank deposits denominated in foreign
currencies fluctuated throughout the year and in management's
opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
deposits and bank balances which carry at prevailing market
interest rates. The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate has increased during
the current year mainly due to the increase in variable rate
bank deposits and bank balances at the year end.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to the bank deposits and bank balances
which bear floating interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. A 10 basis point (2012: 10 basis point) increase or
decrease is used to present management assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates for those
balances denominated in RMB, HK$, US$ and Australian
Dollars (“AUD”) at the year end.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2012: 10 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
March 2013 would increase/decrease approximately by
HK$426,000 (2012: HK$412,000).
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ERTR(®)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HBERAREEZERBR (&)
Market risks (continued) hiSERE (&)

(iii) Other price risk (iii) B EERE

As at 31 March 2012, the Group was exposed to equity price
risk through its available-for-sale investments -investment in
an investee company (as disclosed in note 21). No sensitivity
analysis was prepared as price risk arising from available-for-
sale investments — investment in an investee company which
was measured at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates was so significance and its
fair value could not be reliably measured. The amount was
disposed of upon completion of the Asset Swap on 31 August
2012.

During both years, the Group purchased certain short-term
investment products from banks which were measured at fair
value and therefore exposed the Group to other price risk.
Since no investment products were held by the Group as at
31 March 2013 and 2012, no sensitivity analysis is presented.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EMMTHR(®)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HFRAREERFRERBER(E)
Liquidity risk e ED T L B
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and AEERESERE TR, B
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate REFRENRESEEREER
by the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate EBRREURAEBZEERME
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. ERFARERRBHRENEZH
B2IKFE,

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRANAEBIRBEHEEN B
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the ZEMTESHEEZFBRSOH
agreed repayment dates. The table has been drawn up based on BR. ZERDIBBAEERTHEK
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the EEcMAtzRREABZRUEE
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. ReERERmHE,

Total
Less than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
3 months to 4 months cash flows amount
RE4IR
DR=@ER Z=ERZEMER ReRgsn IRE(E
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
As at 31 March 2013 RZ$-=F=B=1+-H
Trade and other payables FEfS BRI TR 14,568,896 376,979 14,945,875 14,945,875
Amounts due to related S BEATME
companies 926,236 926,236 926,236
Dividend payable to IR RE
non-controlling shareholders 28,016,609 28,016,609 28,016,609
43,511,741 376,979 43,888,720 43,888,720
Total
Less than 3months undiscounted Carrying
3 months to 4 months cash flows amount
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
REEEH
DR=EE =ERZEMER Renges ERmEE
BT i B B
As at 31 March 2012 RZ3-"F=B=1+-H

Trade and other payables FEfTERFN R eI 7,661,627 372,004 8,033,651 8,033,651
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
c. Fairvalue

Except that the available-for-sale investments — investment in
an investee company are stated at cost at 31 March 2012, the
fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of all financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate to their
corresponding fair values.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the managing director of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purposes of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on the
types of goods delivered. Before the completion of the Asset Swap, the
Group had three operating and reportable segments: pharmaceutical
and biotechnology business, mineral resources business as well as
packaging and printing business.

As explained in note 1, the mineral resources business and packaging
and printing business were classified as discontinued operations during
the year ended 31 March 2012. Upon completion of the Asset Swap in
current year, the Group focuses on pharmaceutical and biotechnology
business and the CODM reviews the financial performance of
this business as a whole for allocating resources and assessing
performance. Since then, the Group has only one operating segment. In
addition, the CODM is of the opinion that the presentation of assets and
liabilities in accordance with the operating segments is not meaningful
as the CODM monitors the Group’s assets and liabilities as a whole
which is more efficient and effective. Accordingly, no segment assets
and liabilities are presented. The segment information reported below
does not include any amounts for those discontinued operations, which
are presented in note 11.

Other than the revenue analysis as set out in note 7(e), no operating
results and other discrete financial information relating to major products
is prepared regularly for internal reporting to the CODM for resources
allocation and performance assessment.

6.

E£MTH®)
c. AREE

MR -_FE—_—F=B=+—Ha#t
HERE - R—BERKREATDZR
B AIR, SRHEERSH
BEZARBEDRBAREER
X, ERMBRRERESTTEE.

ARBEFRR, REGMBEHRE
FIRBHEMAIIRZEHMEERS
MEaEEZREEYRAEEREZ AR
BERE.

A B 53 EBEH

ARBD/DEERRFEDBREREME
AR EFREE (HWEREERRKE)
ERZEHNETPRPEIMTZEWE
Bl. REEEBRTHA, FEEEG=E
RENRTEMOED : BEEWMER. B
ERREBLUN BEEIRIZEE .

AN EE 1R, RBE—F—F
=R=1t—HILFE, BEEREZR
BEIDAXBERSER/ERIEEEX
B. REEETHREEERR, F5E
EFRBEENER, MEEEERK
EROBRERRTLREMEBERZ
EBzUMBRER. Bit, X&EEESE—
BEEESER. i, TEEERKER
REEEERREERBAEESERE
NEEREBEBERASBN, B, HHE7)
HoMEERGE. TXREZDWE
B A BEZERME N2 LR
EEBZ AT,

BREMEE 7 (e) FREMIN 4TS, T EHAMR
HERFEEMNKEXENREME T
HBEN, LRBREFEEEERRK
HIFERDENRERRTEZA.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZ_—F—=fF=F=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
from continuing operations.

MARSEREH (&)
(a) PEBARELS

UTRAEEREFESEXEBZ
L NVSE S =X

2013 2012

HK$ HK$

BT BT

REVENUE - EXTERNAL T - 4hER 180,213,975 97,276,705
SEGMENT PROFIT 93 ERiEF 59,018,735 52,175,370
Other income Eb A 3,529,762 3,891,645
Other gains and losses Bl R EiE 3,163,155 670,357
Unallocated expenses Ko (14,952,641) (12,768,922)
Profit for the year from continuing operations FRRBIFELSE LR ZmF 50,759,011 43,968,450

The accounting policies of the operating segment are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit after taxation earned by the segment without
allocation of central administration costs, directors’ salaries, certain
other income, and other gains and losses. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

RE DB Z GRT BRI 3 Prik
FEBZEFTBEER. 2E0EF
EO MBI BRREREF, KED
BHRRITERA. EFHFM. &F
HAREEREE. &
BORRFRFEMS, LHRE
FEEERKREZRZFESTN.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. WMARPEBEH (&)
(b) Other segment information (b) HfthsrERE#H
Pharmaceutical
and
biotechnology
business Unallocated
BEEYMERS RO
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Amount included in the measure of  EIERETE S ZBinFIE,
segment profit or loss BiEg DI EEN
or segment assets Z &
Additions of property, plant R BB NSRS
and equipment 2,870,518 3,293,691 6,164,209
Depreciation of property, plant ME. MENREZIFE
and equipment 3,806,116 325,346 4,131,462
Amortisation of prepaid lease FaftrEIaEE
payments 1,843,728 - 1,843,728
Loss (gain) on disposal of HEME. BBERRE
property, plant and equipment 2R (s ) 193,564 (3,801) 189,763
Interest income IISUS N 794,077 3,524,671 4,318,748
Income tax FriSia 12,097,888 = 12,097,888
2012
Pharmaceutical
and
biotechnology
business Unallocated Total
BEEEL YRS KHOBEC HEE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BTt
Amount included in the measure of  BIIEIEFTE D ERiAITK
segment profit or loss BIERDEEEN
or segment assets ZEHE
Additions of property, plant ERE. BENRSEE
and equipment 1,480,788 43,262 1,524,050
Depreciation of property, plant Y. MBENEREZIRE
and equipment 2,420,155 163,766 2,583,921
Amortisation of prepaid FafITHEFIEEH
lease payments 95,632 - 95,632
Loss on disposal of property, plant &Y% BB RZRE
and equipment ZEE 62,388 713 63,101
Interest income GIESUON 421,293 3,831,631 4,252,924

Income tax FriE# 14,847,303 - 14,847,303
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZ_—F—=fF=F=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. WMARDEBER (&)
(c) Geographical information (c) HEEH
The Group principally operates in Australia, Hong Kong and the AEBFERBAF I, §I§&EP
PRC (country of domicile). Bl ( SEFRERR ) K&
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales TRIRBEBFAERRHEAEE R
from continuing operations by geographical market based on the wEHE( FwEn/ REZKIE
location of operations irrespective of the origin of goods/services. i) Bl ZRHECE EBIHE DT
The Group’s revenue from external customers from continuing AEBRBINSBEFZIFELSEE
operations and information about its non-current assets by BRANREBERFEMESE S Z
geographical location of the assets are detailed below: ERBEEERFBRHIWT -
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets

REIMBEFZIA EREEE
2013
HKS$

& 7 &

The PRC (country of domicile) Rl ( A&&SFRTEETSR ) BRREIRLER: LY 97,276,705 410,332,781 31,851,266
Hong Kong & 71,993 - 5,039,169 2,035,500
Australia BXHIEE - - 9,767,085 -

180,213,975 97,276,705 425,139,035 33,886,766

(d) Information about major customer (d) BRAEXEEFRZEH
Revenue from a major customer which accounts for 10% or more REIGAREBRFELSE BN 10%
of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations are as follows: FEZz—BFEZFRANEHIIWN
T
2012
HK$
BT

Revenue from customer attributable to BEAYEBRELEFKA .
pharmaceutical and biotechnology products:

Company A KREA 20,606,868 86,495,860
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 1.

(e) Revenue from major products

(e) EEERIIN

WMARSBEH (2)

2012
HK$
BIT

Continuing operations ISEREERB

Pharmaceutical and biotechnology products BRELYER
— Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate for injection - 5T RISE Bk R 112,452,240 88,290,895
- Tuoping (Valsartan capsules) - (4EiBEEE ) 28,018,860 -
— Tuoen (Ibuprofen suspension and drops) -EE(HBSEERE ) 11,690,349 -
- Others - Hith 28,052,526 8,985,810
180,213,975 97,276,705

8(a). OTHER INCOME 8(a). ELfRUIN

2012
HK$
B BT

Continuing operations IHEREEE
Interest income on bank deposits SRITERF BN 4,318,748 4,252,924
Investment income from available-for-sale investment AMHHEREZIREIAN 1,534,918 1,676,760

Release of government grants in relation to certain MBETEEEN
assets (note 26) ZBIRFISED ( 326 362,898 358,706
Government grants (note) BUrFfaEED (B ) 342,601 973,979
Others Hitb 298,670 60,015
6,857,835 7,322,384
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2013, a PRC subsidiary received an amount of approximately it  RE&EZE-_F—=F=BA=+—HLFER, —

R R BB /B A S ISR IE 40 343,000 75 ( =8
— 5 . 974000870 ) IREBELYERS
ERRE.

HK$343,000 (2012: HK$974,000) to recognise the eminent brand of pharmaceutical and
biotechnology products.
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8(b). OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8(b). ELfth U z5 K2 518
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations ISEREES
Exchange gain FE s 2,873,066 1,385,289
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME. MENREZES (189,763) (63,101)
2,683,303 1,322,188
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. PRSIz
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
&7 BT
Continuing operations ISEREE
Current tax: BIHATRIS .
PRC enterprise income tax hE SR 12,213,646 11,472,436
Withholding tax Fammn 3,424,252 5,706,472
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BFEE (BREEE ) BERE .
PRC enterprise income tax hEf {25 (1,292,617) 44,009
Deferred tax (note 28): IRFERRIE (BfiaE28 )
Current year REE (2,247,393) (2,375,614)
12,097,888 14,847,303

rRBRASHEEEMMNZ, BBEM
AR CIVEE 5o

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is not
subject to any income tax.

RMEFERN, EBRERUKRZE16.5%
BAFTERREFFE. HRMEFE
rEBIEAEBELEBRREF, W
IEEHEBFEHRER.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. No provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been made as the Group has no assessable profit arising in, or
derived from, Hong Kong for both years.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group is 25%, except
Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical Co., Limited (“Meng Sheng”), a
subsidiary of the Group, which is established in the Kunming economic
open zone. Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
Meng Sheng is engaged in Western China Development and was
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the calendar year 2012. As
the preferential tax rate of 15% for the period from 1 January 2012 to 31
March 2012 was only subsequently granted by the relevant government
authorities during the year ended 31 March 2013, it resulted in an
overprovision of PRC enterprise income tax in prior year.

The corporate tax rate applicable to the subsidiary of the Company
established and operating in Australia is 30% in 2013. No provision
for the Australian income tax has been provided as the Group had no
taxable profits arising in Australia during the year.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 28. The income tax
expense for both years can be reconciled to the profit before tax per the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

FRSIRZH (&)

BAEE—HREPKSEMREER
WBADEmBEEEETRAR([ B
4 )4, REBFEMBATDZRES
25%, RIBFREBEEZIAERER, BE
SHEPEFASPHE, SR E——EF
EZEEERER15%. HR_F——F—H
—HE_E—_F£=B=1+—HH/8Z
BERRBUDREEERE"E—=F
=R=1+—RUEEEHEBTBBFINM
¥, BEHBFFEFHCEMRSRE
B,

R-F—=%F, BRAREIRFREXF
DHRREEZHBABDZEERER
30%. FRASZSEEEITE AN E L HTE AT
DESZERRIGH, HEEELREK
FSE PSR

ESEFIE Z F &M aE 28, MBS E
ZHERMXHEGSSEBERAZEK
RETmFEARAT .

2013 2012
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations ISERESE
Profit before tax BRI AT 62,856,899 58,815,753
Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 #HE_F—=FR_F—_F
=B=+—HIHE
ZHRERE 25% 15,714,225 14,703,939
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in REMIEEERS
other jurisdictions ZIBAREMNAEREZ & 854 (179,370)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose IR s AR
2R E 24,722 211,061
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose MR = B/ERERIIA
2B (2,210,241) (1,632,323)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERREBIECRBTE 4,870,549 2,838,610
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised EFBARER ZRIERE (1,990,941) -
Tax effect on deductible temporary differences not REERIR SR ESE
recognised 2B = 4,149
Effect of tax concession granted to a PRC subsidiary EYy—RTEHBEATRIEERE
=58 (6,636,823) (4,666,962)
(Over) underprovision in prior years MBEFEZ (BEERE ) BERE (1,292,617) 44,009
Withholding tax of income generated from FEL R B AT EE N ZTENR
the PRC subsidiaries 3,197,289 3,330,858
Others Hith 420,871 193,332
Income tax expense for the year KEEREHRZH 12,097,888 14,847,303
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FEEEF
2012
HK$
BT
Continuing operations ISEREES
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: REEHF SR .
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) EEES (FFEE12) 360,000 360,000
Other staff costs HibE T AR
Salaries and other benefits e NEMER 31,146,193 10,169,331
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IBIAEFFTEIERR 3,268,541 1,072,148
Total staff costs ST A4 34,774,734 11,601,479
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FafTfRERIE L #E 1,843,728 95,632
Auditors’ remuneration ZERTEN = 1,295,723 1,112,536
Cost of inventories recognised as expense HRAHZEEMA
(including capitalisation of amortisation of (B¥E6,577,426 BT
intangible assets of HK$6,577,426 (2012: Nil)) (ZFE——F . ®)
B GEZHBIHERNML) 56,181,034 24,805,834
Depregciation of property, plant and equipment Y. BEIEREIRE 4,131,462 2,583,921

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS 1. BRIHESEBERISELHEZE

HELD FOR SALE

On 30 March 2012, the Company entered into the Asset Swap
Agreement with Tianda Group to dispose of its entire equity interests
of subsidiaries and the shareholder’s loan involved in its packaging
and printing business and mineral resources business (collectively
known as the “Disposal Group”) at a consideration of HK$302,200,000
in aggregate (“Disposal Consideration”, comprising of a disposal
consideration for mineral resources business of HK$14,200,000
and a disposal consideration for packaging and printing business
of HK$288,000,000), in exchange for its ultimate holding company,
Tianda Group’s, 100% equity interest in certain subsidiaries which
are engaged in the manufacture and sales of pharmaceutical and
biotechnology products (collectively known as the “Acquisition Group”
or “Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group”) and its shareholder’s loan at a
total consideration of HK$380,000,000 (“Acquisition Consideration”)
in aggregate. The shortfall between the Acquisition Consideration and
the Disposal Consideration of HK$77,800,000 was settled by cash.
The acquisition and disposal are considered as major and connected
transactions. Details of the transactions were set out in the Company’s
circular dated 30 May 2012.

EB4ER

RIE——H=B=+H, A 8THEX
AEBIVEEERBSE, UWERE
302,200,00087T( [ HESIBRE |, H
B E B E RS R 2552 {12 14,200,000
BITRYEARDRBERZRE
288,000,00087T ) HEER K EEEEIR
EBRBEESREBNBAD (4B &
EEF | ) 2R AEERREER,
BREEREERATDRKEBRETR
EREREEREEYERERZHE
AT (BB WEAR s RKEESE
1) Z100% AR R HARERER, &
KB4 1£4380,000,00038 7 ([ WEE=IE
RE] ) ARBEHLURESZFKWIESIS
RERBESEREZZE%5877,800,000/8
. WESERHEZEHREAETER
BEXZ. Z2EXIHFBEHREILTH
HAE—E——FRB=+tHZERN.
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS 1. BEIEESEBERISELHEZT

HELD FOR SALE (continued) E4ER (&)
The transaction was completed on 31 August 2012. The results of RBERFE—-"F/N\A=+—H%=
the Disposal Group up till the completion date of the transaction are B. HEANBEEXZTHMERZEE
accounted for as discontinued operations in the consolidated statement RBEEZZT—=FR-ZF—"F=AH
of comprehensive income for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 =+—HUESFEZGELHEKWFEERNI
and its assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2012 were classified as IRIFERIEREER, MEARZE—Z
disposal groups held-for-sale in the consolidated statement of financial F=R=+—HzEEHBBRUREGS
position. The assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group as at disposal MBRRENDERFEHEZRESR
date on 31 August 2012 are set out in note 32. Al HEANREERH-S—Z—F/)\
B=t+—HzEER&E&HRMEE32.
The profit (loss) for the year from the discontinued operations is RECKRIEKEEBRZAFE RN (&
analysed as follows: B)DaT .
2013 2012
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Profit of packaging and printing business (Note a) BEEENRIZEFS 2 HF (FfizEa) 7,966,595 41,778,741
Profit (loss) of mineral resources business (Note b) WEERRESEZEF (BE)
(BdzED) 1,087,357 (6,217,570)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of transaction costs  HHEMBAT ZUzE,
and taxes (Note 32(b) & (c)) RBHARARIE (FFaE32(b) K (c) ) 7,882,808 -
Profit for the year from discontinued operations RECEIREERE RFEHF 16,936,760 35,561,171
Profit for the year from discontinued operations RECKRIEKEE
attributable to: ZARFEnFEBER
Owners of the Company ¥/ )i 3] 13,364,921 23,779,942
Non-controlling interests El iy e 3,571,839 11,781,229

16,936,760 35,561,171
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS 1.
HELD FOR SALE (continued)

The disposal groups classified as held-for-sale at 31 March 2012 were
analysed as follows:

CRIEESERERISEHEZER
SR (&)
R-E——H=HB=+—0, SEsE
EHEZ HEMARZHHUNT

2012
HK$
BT
Assets associated with disposal group of packaging and printing ~ EE G 3EEN I 7 HEARIE RS
business (Note a) ZEE (Mista) 531,658,845
Assets associated with disposal group of mineral resources AR AR EHRARER
business (Note b) ZEE(MizkDb) 17,743,816
Total assets associated with disposal groups classified S EARFHEZ HERFITR
as held-for-sale ZEE®E 549,402,661
Liabilities associated with disposal group of packaging and printing E2 €33 EN Rl 3£ 75 HH 548 5 5 8
business (Note a) ZeE(Mizka) 234,100,664
Liabilities associated with disposal group of mineral resources EEERRER L EHER
business (Note b) ZEfE (D) 10,320,034
Total liabilities associated with disposal groups classified HO AR EHEZHERERER
as held-for-sale ZeEEsE 244,420,698
Exchange reserve recognised in other comprehensive income and  E3.3EDRI 2758 4R BB RBEE ST fE B
accumulated in equity relating to disposal group of packaging REME K EEER
and printing business (Note a) RrtER R (Mista) 16,309,213
Exchange reserve recognised in other comprehensive income and  HEEEBEIR 275t E4H R B BB EE ST B
accumulated in equity relating to disposal group of mineral REMEmE SRR
resources business (Note b) RS R (FiEEDd) 2,381,015
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income and PEASFELHEZLERRIEREEE
accumulated in equity relating to disposal groups classified REMEEEHEERRIER RS
as held-for-sale 18,690,228

For presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2012, the amounts due to group entities amounting to
HK$129,818,206 was excluded from the total liabilities associated with
disposal groups held-for-sale.

MR —FB——F=A=+—HGEEHHE
RRERFE2IE, BNEBRERNIE
129,818,206 BcE B EFEHEZ HER
BUIERARY B ERERIIR .
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS 1. BEIEESEBERISELHEZT

HELD FOR SALE (continued) E4ER (&)
(a) Packaging and printing business classified as held-for-sale (a) SEEBRIIEHEZERENRE
3
(i) The results of the packaging and printing business for the () BEZFE—=RTFE—HF=
years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 were as follows: B=t+—HUEFEZSEDR
HEBFEEBUNT .
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Note)
( BiEE)
Revenue IYON 101,780,810 299,956,774
Cost of sales THERA (81,451,733) (212,221,950)
Gross profit EAR 20,329,077 87,734,824
Other income E=GCTON 2,669,479 4,715,923
Other gains and losses Hilms M Esia (45,291) (262,594)
Distribution and selling expenses PHEREER T (5,000,337) (16,160,718)
Administrative expenses TBRH (4,110,978) (12,849,138)
Research and development expenses RN FEERI (3,258,036) (14,448,540)
Share of result of an associate (note 20) FE(L—REE AN T 24 (FiEE20) 946,190 1,369,877
Profit before tax ==yl 11,530,104 50,099,634
Income tax expense Fri§fsz (3,563,509) (8,320,893)
Profit for the year REE&F 7,966,595 41,778,741
Note: The results represent the operation up to the completion date of the Asset Swap Bist . ¥EIERESESIRTHRHE
on 31 August 2012. (ZFE—ZHF/)\B=+—H)zZ&
%Q
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as HIEMEFEEZSRINRZER
the packaging and printing business has no assessable profit TimAESBELERRIEF,
arising in, or derived from, Hong Kong for both years. A E SIS REE.
The tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group is 25%. REETEHMBEATZHRES
25%
Zhuhai S.E.Z. Cheng Cheng Printing Co., Ltd. (‘Cheng KERBERERAENBERA
Cheng"), one of the subsidiaries grouped in the disposal ([ #Ak | ) THERE S LEEED
group of packaging and printing business, was recognised Iz HEARZHEHP—HE
as a High-Tech Enterprise and was subject to preferential tax WEL R, EEREBRASHH
rate of 15% from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2011. Tax K%, BZEFENEFE—HB—
rate is 25% from 1 January 2012. HE_ZE—+"B=+—

H, BEE=ZFEZEHRER15%,
“E-"HF—H—RARZR=E
A& 25%.,
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS 1. BRIESEBERSELREZE

HELD FOR SALE (continued) E£4R (&)
(a) Packaging and printing business classified as held-for-sale (a) HEEBISEHEZEREDRIZE
(continued) (&)
(i) Profit for the period/year from packaging and printing (i) ZAHAEFERB RN
business has been arrived at after charging: BziafemnRTIIES -
2012
HK$
BT
Directors’ emoluments EE T -
Other staff costs HitETpK
Salaries and other benefits FHE K EMEF 12,900,178 36,674,346
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IBIREFETEIERR 1,102,639 1,868,039
Total staff costs BT RAEEE 14,002,817 38,542,385
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FE(THE I {#H 90,606 215,391
Cost of inventories recognised as expense  FERA HZ IFE AN
(including capitalisation of amortisation of (B3E3,756,835 57T
intangible assets of HK$3,756,835 (ZT——F . 9,7%47187T)
(2012: HK$9,794,471)) B EEZBHEERN) 81,451,733 212,221,950
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 42, RERE RS EITE 4,639,145 10,634,552
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plantand  HEWE . MENEEZ (B )
equipment (included in other gains and 518 ( BIEREMbI S R EIEN )
losses) (21,241) 37,461
Net foreign exchange loss HMEEREIEFEE
(included in other gains and losses) ( BEREMMKEREERN ) 66,532 225,133
and after crediting: WEFATIIER .
Dividend income from available-for-sale BatHEREZREKN -
investments — investment in R—EEREQARZIRE
an investee company (included in revenue)  ( ELIFERUIANA ) (5,426,585)
Interest income from bank deposits IRITEARFBMAN

(included in other income) (BEREMKARN) (2,212,306) (3,503,140)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS 1.
HELD FOR SALE (continued)
(a) Packaging and printing business classified as held-for-sale
(continued)

(i) Cash flows for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012
from the packaging and printing business were as follows:

..‘.Jlj.‘.‘é:’“‘%i‘%&?ﬂ’ﬁtl:l%z-':ﬂ
€E4A5 (&
(a) PERBELEZSEERIE
B(&E)
(iy BEZE—=ER"E—_F
=B=+—RHLlFESEIR
%}&ZIEQUILEQD-F H

2013 2012

HK$ HK$

BT BT
(Note)
(B&E)

Net cash inflows from operating activities RETEEEEZRERNFEE 73,919,857 27,366,361

Net cash (outflows) inflows from investing KEFHZRE (R ) RNEEE

activities
Net cash outflows from financing activites ~ BB 2FEZIRS R FRE

(55,399,579) 32,647,969
(21,083,236) (35,046,708)

Net cash (outflows) inflows RBe (RE) RNFE

(2,562,958) 24,967,622

Note: The cash flows represent the operation up to the completion date of the Asset
Swap on 31 August 2012.

M ReERBEREEESRTME
B(ZE2——HF/N\A=t+—H)Z

KR
fr==1
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS 1. BRIESEBERSELREZE

HELD FOR SALE (continued) B4R (&)
(a) Packaging and printing business classified as held-for-sale (a) HEEBISEHEZEREDRIZE
(continued) (&)
(iv) The major classes of assets and liabilities of the packaging (iv) DEARIFLESRIRIZERS
and printing business classified as held-for-sale are as ZEEHBBEZFEHIN
follows: g

2012
HK$
BT
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) MIE. BB K&EME (FIEE15) 63,477,278
Prepaid lease payments (note 16) FaftrRERIE ( MyEE16) 7,358,681
Interest in an associate (note 20) S—EE ATz s (FEE20) 15,923,773
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE -R—EERENE
— investment in an investee company (note 21) Z3%&E (MiEE21) 32,465,141
Gooduwill (note 17) e (zE17) 44,550,363
Intangible assets (note 18) EREE (MizE18) 77,418,760
Deposit for the acquisition of property, plant and WEBMIZE . BB NREZIZE
equipment 7,404,266
Inventories (note 22) 7FE (MEE22) 62,066,036
Trade and other receivables (note 23) eI BRFR R ELAth FEKIER ( BEE23) 31,306,129
Amounts due from related companies (note 35(a)) FEW RRIE N BIFKIA ( Bk 35(a) ) 43,582,841
Bank deposits IRITE 102,233,534
Bank balances and cash IRITAERR RIS 43,872,043
Total disposal group classified as held-for-sale DEEAEHEZ HEARIAEEE 531,658,845
Trade and other payables (note 25) FETERFR S ELABFE(T TR ( BfF7E25) 53,894,269
Amounts due to related companies (note 35(a)) FEfIBEE L BIFRIE ( BiFEE35(a) ) 790,755
Dividend payable to non-controlling interests FETIEERER 2 IRE 27,389,639
Tax payable FEIHRIE 3,176,869
Deferred tax liabilities (note 28) EFERIEE & (MizE28) 22,983,016
Amounts due to group entities e E B BRI 125,866,116
Total liabilities associated with disposal group HAOEARFEHEZ HEARRERE
classified as held-for-sale ZafEpEE 234,100,664
Exchange reserve recognised in other comprehensive >3BAIFHEHEZ HEHAR!
income and accumulated in equity relating to REMEEmEEER MR ERRET
disposal group classified as held-for-sale ZEREE 16,309,213
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS 1. BEIEESEBERISELHEZT

HELD FOR SALE (continued) B4R (&)
(b) Mineral resources business classified as held-for-sale (b) SBEEBRISIEHEZIRERRE
%

(i) The results of the mineral resources business for the years
ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

(i)

Other income HAWA

Other losses Hithgs18

Gain on disposal of exploration and H SRR EE W
evaluation assets

Administrative expenses B

Impairment loss recognised in respect of ENIREATT L B R
exploration and evaluation assets (note 19)  ZiRi{EEEIE ( FfiEE19)

Profit (loss) before tax FrFeEER (E518 )
Income tax expense FriSiisz
Profit (loss) for the year REEHF (B8 )

Note:  The results represent the operation up to the completion date of the Asset Swap
on 31 August 2012.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
mineral resources business has no assessable profit arising
in, or derived from, Hong Kong for both years.

The tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group is 25% for
both years.

BHE_T—=FR"F—_F
=R=t+—HILFEREERIR

EBZEEBNT

2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT

(Note)

(BfEE)
68,741 301,587
(87,972) (24,671)
2,383,728 -
(1,275,385) (2,638,699)
(3,851,286)
1,089,112 (6,213,069)
(1,755) (4,501)
1,087,357 (6,217,570)

Wi REDEREAEERERAH
(Z=——%/\A=+—H) 2z
EHRMIEFE ZBERIRER
MEEEBSEEBRREN,
B EIE L BB SRR,

KRMEFEE, AEEDEKME
RNEZIREIZ25% .
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZ_—F—=fF=F=+—HIFE

1.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS 1.

HELD FOR SALE (continued)

(b) Mineral resources business classified as held-for-sale

(continued)

(i)

(i)

EAILEERBRIMELEZL

SR (&)

Profit (loss) for the period/year from mineral resources

business has been arrived at after charging:

(b) BERBELEZRERIRR

(&)

(i)

Directors’ emoluments
Other staff costs
Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

EEME

Hitt 8 TRA
HENREMER
BIAREFIFHEMHR

Total staff costs

BT AR

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange loss
and after crediting:

Interest income from bank deposits
(included in other income)

. BENREIRE
SMEFEST RS IRF AR

EFtATIIEE :

RITEEFIR N
( BIEREMBAR )

REAR FEREEERERERS

A (BB18 ) EfIRR FAIER .

2012
HK$

BT

555,405 1,012,766
53,219 69,448

608,624 1,082,214
303,307 681,196
87,972 24,671

(68,741) (277,269)

Cash flows for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012
from the mineral resources business were as follows:

(ii)

HE—F—=FNR"_F—_F
=A=t+—HIEFEEERR

E¥RZHEREBWT .
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Note)
(BfisE)
Net cash outflows from operating activities A& EEIEE RS HIELE (1,200,003) (2,007,680)
Net cash inflows (outflows) from investing REFHZHWER/N (R ) 358
activities 1,804,484 (2,595,449)
Net cash inflows (outflows) from financing BIEEBZRESRAN(RE )38
activities 660,110 (82,318)
Net cash inflows (outflows) HERA(Rd ) F5E 1,264,591 (4,685,447)

M . HEREREEEESRTHE
H((ZE——F/\B=+—H)z

K&,

Note: The cash flows represent the operation up to the completion date of the Asset
Swap on 31 August 2012.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS 1. BEIEESEBERISELHEZT

HELD FOR SALE (continued) R (&)
(b) Mineral resources business classified as held-for-sale (b) SBEEBRISIEHEZIRERRE

(continued) 3%(&E)

(iv) The major classes of assets and liabilities of the mineral vy RZE—"F=R=+—81,
resources business classified as held-for-sale at 31 March DEABFLEEERREZE
2012 were as follows: EHaEZFTEHEINT .

2012
HK$
BT
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) ME. BE&EME (FMEE15) 1,413 453
Exploration and evaluation assets (note 19) BRI EE (FzE19) 2,664,960
Other receivables (note 23) Hb KR ( BfgaE23 ) 345,911
Bank deposits IRITE 7,440,476
Bank balances and cash IRfTEMRNIRS 5,879,016
Total disposal group classified as held-for-sale PERFELEZ LEHRRIERE 17,743,816
Other payables (note 25) BRI (MEE25) 185,917
Amount due to ultimate holding company (note 35(b)(ii)) FE{ B4R 5 RS LN BIFRIE ( BidaE 35(b)(ii) ) 107,917
Loans from ultimate holding company (note 35(b)())  ERARIZRRATHEMZ &5k ( BFsE35(b)() ) 6,074,110
Amount due to group entities BT EESERIE 3,952,090
Total liabilities associated with disposal group HEO A FHEZ HERFIBERR
classified as held-for-sale ZEaERsE 10,320,034

Exchange reserve recognised in other comprehensive 3841 EHE 2 HEAR R EAD
income and accumulated in equity relating to SEWEER RN ER R ERHEE
disposal group classified as held-for-sale 2,381,015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZ_—F—=fF=F=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. E5. FETHAEREEME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBEREFETHASHSE
The emoluments of the directors and the chief executive on a name REGSHVIZEERFTETHA
basis are as follows: EfMET .
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE—ES—=F=RA=1+—HLEE

Other emoluments
Hithif £
Salaries Retirement
and other benefits scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
FER BiREF
as HithtgFl sHEIHER FhiM«2gE

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT B
Fang Wen Quan*# J5 S HE 60,000 60,000
Li Suiming* Z=fEAE* 60,000 60,000
Liu Huijiang* BEE 60,000 60,000
Chiu Sung Hong HERE 60,000 60,000
Chiu Fan Wa M 60,000 60,000
Lam Yat Fai HEE 60,000 60,000
360,000 360,000
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BEF—_"F=A=+—HULHFE
Other emoluments
HitbEl &
Salaries Retirement
and other  benefits scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments

ek BAER
B Hith 25! FTEIftER FriMHEEE

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT

Fang Wen Quan*# T3 STHE 60,000 - - 60,000

Li Suiming* Z=FEAR 60,000 - - 60,000

Liu Huijiang* BZE 60,000 - - 60,000

Chiu Sung Hong iz 60,000 - - 60,000

Chiu Fan Wa L 60,000 - - 60,000

Lam Yat Fai =) 60,000 - - 60,000

360,000 - - 360,000

Executive directors * HITES
# Chief executive # FEITHAE

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the years BETE—=FRZEF—_"F=A
ended 31 March 2013 and 2012. =t+—HLEFE, WESEHET

AEE .
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. E5. FETHAERESME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEME
During the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2013, of the five REEZFE—"_FRIFT—=FH=
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, none was B=+—HLEE, x&EERE&
a director of the Company whose emolument is included in the EEHMZATES, BEETAL
disclosures in note (a) above. The emoluments of the remaining BRAXNTESE, HileBE LM
five individuals were as follows: FHEIEE. ERTSALTZESW
T
2013 2012
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits HrEREMEF 4,074,944 2,884,810
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BIREFIET SRR 43,500 15,000

4,118,444 2,899,810

Their emoluments were within the following bands: HEZMENFLUTEHENR .

2013 2012
No. of No. of
employees employees

EEHE EEHE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 F 752 1,000,000 7T 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #7TZ 1,500,000 77T -
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the RREFERN, AEBULEQESE

directors and five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join EAEZ&EEHFMZ AL GHE,
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. MERBEIMAREBHLILIMAR

EERSZ RS FRRREE.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZ_—F—=fF=F=+—HIFE

13. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. SIREFRTF
From continuing and discontinued operations REFERERCEILEEEE
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners ARBRREEERERBFDBRET
of the Company is based on the following data: FIBRETE -
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings =
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per share FTEBREARIBEZER] 37,740,062 43,095,595
Number of shares il B =
Number of ordinary shares in issue for the purpose STEESREXRBFRAE
of basic earnings per share ZEBETEERENOEE JEPOREERLN  1,870,118,160
From continuing operations REIFEGEES
The calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing operations ARERREGFESEERBRER
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following BAIDREB TSRS
data:
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Profit for the year attributable to the owners RABIRRBILAFE ST
of the Company 37,740,062 43,095,595
Less: profit for the year from discontinued operations W ERIEREREB Y AFERT 13,364,921 23,779,942
Profit for the purpose of basic eamings per share FTEREREERBRERRR
from continuing operations FrRZ ia# 24,375,141 19,315,653
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for the B FYHFRABEBEEERERBEL
basic earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations. RELBzBREARBAFMERZSE

HE,
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

13.

14.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
From discontinued operations

The calculation of basic earnings per share from discontinued operations
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

13.

Profit for the purpose of basic earnings per share

from discontinued operations FrA 2z iz

FEERILEEXBEERESEF

SREFRERRN (&)
KECKILESEE
ANTREEECRICSERGRE
ABA R T oSSt E .
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT
13,364,921 23,779,942

Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations

ERIHFESEXERC BREARF NP XL

1.27 cents 3L

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for the
basic earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the Company did not have
any dilutive shares in issue during both years.

DIVIDENDS

The final dividend of HK0.41 cent per share amounting to HK$7,667,484
in aggregate in respect of the year ended 31 March 2013 has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to the approval by the
shareholders at Annual General Meeting.

The final dividend of HK0.47 cent per share in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2012 (2011: final dividend of HKO0.72 cent per share
and special dividend of HK0.66 cent per share) had been proposed by
the directors and was approved by the shareholders at Annual General
Meeting. Dividends with aggregate amount of HK$8,789,555 (2011:
HK$25,807,631) were paid and were recognised as distribution during
the year ended 31 March 2013 (2011: year ended 31 March 2012).

14.

HEVFRBAEEREFELERD
RIMCEXBBRESBAMERZ
SEEE.

HREFNZMEFER, FRATHHE
FOERTEESFRAZRY, HIUE
ENSREERT

BE
EEEEREE_E—=F=H=1+—
HIFFEEREARBRESR0418W, &
17667484 7T, HARKRREBEFRS
ERRERIE, FAEE.,

EEREREE—_E——_H£=B=1+—
HIEFEEIRERIREFTR04TBWM( =
FB——F . REREBRIBUWRES
BIREEAR0.667(l), WERKREBE
A PEREE, RESTLIES789,555
BT ( ZF——F . 25,807,631 87T ) IRE
ECES-=H=B=+—HLEEER(Z
B——F . BEZE_FE-—_F=BF=1+—
HILFE ) ERCGIERE DR,
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y%, BB KRR
Furniture,
Plant and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Buildings machinery  improvements equipment vehicles Total
i) A,
BF RBEREE VERE REREE fat Lk
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B B B B B B
CosT 773
At 1 April 2011 ZF—FNE—H 31549459 68,183,654 2,480,456 5,944,769 6490628 114648966
Exchange realignment B 1,264,425 2,478,800 - 165,044 289,800 4,198,069
Additions B - 4798356 - 1,347,398 3123879 9,269,633
Disposalsfwritten-off HE /i - (322,975) - (295,267) - (618,242)
Reclassified as held-for-sale EMDERRELE
(note 11) (BsEn) (13,393,170)  (57,906,102) - (3692671)  (7051469)  (82,043412)
At31March2012and 1April 2012 RZE——F=B=1+—H
RZE-"FNA-H 19420714 17231733 2,480,456 3,469,273 2852838 45455014
Exchange realignment ErfE 2,261,681 403,051 - 45,053 89,485 2,799,270
Additions B - 2,108,044 1,546,913 1,736,020 773232 6,164,209
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries  WIBEHTBATIREEN
(note 32(a)) (BzE320a) ) 83,454,756 5,549,629 - 383,482 2150738 91,547,605
Acquired on acquisition of business ~ WEBEEFSIEEEN
(note 32(d)) (B 32d)) - - - 121785 - 121785
Disposalsfwritten-off HE /s - (181475)  (2480456) (197,492) - (2859423
At 31 March 2013 R-S—=§=A=+—-H 105137151 25110982 1,546,913 5,558,121 5875293 143,228,460
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ BHRE
At 1 April 2011 RZF—FNA—H 7150964 11,358,059 2,480,456 2,151,215 2870829 26011523
Exchange realignment EnAE 429,837 592,833 - 48,861 136,142 1,207,673
Provided for the year KEERE 1125367 10,017,786 - 1,021,909 1734607 13,899,669
Eliminated on disposalsiwritten-off ~ HEERSEE /e - (237 405) - (272,062) - (509,467)
Eliminated on reclassify as B EARIELERHE
held-for-sale (note 11) (BzEn) (1025863)  (12431611) - (841,085)  (2854142)  (17,152681)
At31 March2012and 1Aprl 2012 RZF——F=B=+—H
R-F-—EMR—AH 7,680,305 9,209,662 2,480,456 2,108,858 1887436 23456717
Exchange realignment EnAE 124,406 165,501 - 19,634 32620 342,161
Provided for the year AEERE 1,082,350 1,970,888 77,346 627,927 372,951 4,131,462
Eliminated on disposalshritten-off ~ HHESHS5H /g - - (2480456) (189,204) - (2669,660)
At 31 March 2013 R-83-=f=RA=+-H 8,887,061 11,436,051 71,346 2,567,215 2203007 25,260,680
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 March 2013 R-Z—-=$=A=+-H  9%250,00 13674931 1,469,567 2,990,906 3,582,286 117,967,780
At 31 March 2012 RIFE-ZF=A=1—H 11,740,409 7,932,071 - 1,360,415 965402 21,998,207
The buildings, which are situated on leasehold land held under medium- BPHROEEZHEEI M 2 ETY

term leases, are located in the PRC. IR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

3%-10%

5%-10%

10%-33.33% or the term
of the lease, if shorter

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%-20%
Motor vehicles 10%-20%
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15. ¥, BBER:EE (&)

Eir¥z. BERKRBEBTIZLUESE
BTIIFRHRITE .

BF 3%-10%
RS R A 5%-10%
THEYERE 10% - 33.33% 3%,

FREHE (NE5E )

RE. EERRE 10%-20%
RE 10%-20%

16. FE{ITHERIA

Prepaid lease payments for medium-term leasehold land 73R E]Z FREATEE +itb

in the PRC: ZTETEEIE .
Included in current assets BIERREEEN
Included in non-current assets BERERSEEN

2012

HK$

BT

3,153,484 97,530
90,761,957 3,922,633
93,915,441 4,020,163

Prepaid lease payments are released to profit or loss over the lease
terms of 40 to 50 years. An amount of HK$7,358,681 at 31 March 2012
has been classified as held-for-sale in note 11(a).

Included in prepaid lease payments at 31 March 2013 is an amount of
HK$89,572,608 which was acquired by the Group through acquisition of
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group on 31 August 2012 as disclosed in note
32(a).

A AERIER4AES0FEHSHENER
w=RER. RZTE——F=H=+—H
Z FRI1E7,358,681 8 T E R I EE11(a) 0 48
BEEHE,

—E—=F=ZRB=1+—HZEMGHEER
IEEERK 2@ MEEAERR_-E
——FEN\B=t+—HEBKEBRKEE
EEEEZ 89,572,608 7T
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #ZE_F—=F=H=+—HILFE

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
Meng Cheng Tianda
Sheng Cheng Zhuhai Total
BE Sk PY KKHiB kL]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
COST 573
At 1 April 2011 RZE—&FNA—H 6,363,819 43,039,908 - 49,403,727
Exchange realignment Bz 223,333 1,510,455 - 1,733,788
Transfer to disposal groups classified BADEARBIELE
as held-for-sale (note 11(a)) Z HERR (FiEE 1)) (44,550,363) - (44,550,363)
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 RIZE——F=H=+—H
R_E——FNBE—H 6,587,152 - - 6,587,152
Exchange realignment BTz 87,741 - 2,493,073 2,580,814
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries KRB A BREE
(note 32(a)) (BEE32a)) . 99,804,629 99,804,629

At 31 March 2013

R-E—=%=A=+—H 6,674,893

- 102,387,702 109,062,595

For the purposes of impairment testing, the goodwill and certain
intangible assets amounting to HK$89,142,315 at 31 March 2013
has been allocated to two CGUs, (1) Meng Sheng, and (2) Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) Limited (“Tianda Zhuhai”), both engaged in the
sales of pharmaceuticals and biotechnology products. The management
of the Group determines that there is no impairment of the CGUs
containing goodwill and intangible assets.

The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from Meng Sheng and
Tianda Zhuhai were determined based on value in use calculations. The
value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period and a
pre-tax discount rate of 12.32% (2012: 9.27%) for Meng Sheng, and
12.66% (2012: nil) for Tianda Zhuhai, respectively. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate
for both CGUs. The key assumption is budgeted revenue and gross
margins determined based on past performance and the management's
expectations for the market development. Management believes that
any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amounts of CGUs.

MBEBARAMS, R —=F=8
=t+—HZBERETEES 142,315
THEFEEEPEEMERSELE
fi, (1)8B&%E, RQXKEE(HKSE)AR
NEI([RKERIB | ), MEXEHNREE
BEYEREEER. AEEEEERE
EHMELROERENENEEENZ
ReESXEMNRE.

KEBERKEBRKKBZREELE
RIS EIREREEHTERIEE
. FREBFERZREBHERERR
WERERFEHEZ MEEERBRRE
TEERSRABE1232% —B——F .
9.27% ) RR KB 12.66%( —F—_F .
E)TEZREEREEN. AFEBEZ
RERERAN ZEEERERMME
HEELEBEMELER. TEBRAIK
BAERBEREERBHHEERIESR
ZHEEWANRENZER, SEBEHEE, £
IZEFREBUEHREZ(FAEEEFH R
TENRESESLEMNZIREEEBHE
A e £ EEAREE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. EREEE
Licenses and Customer
Trademark permits relationship Total
BiE  ERRFE BRI wst
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT

cosT (573
At 1 April 2011 R —_E—FNF—H - - 87,992,852 87,992,852
Exchange realignment ERAE - - 3,088,043 3,088,043
Reclassified as held-for-sale BN ERBIELE

(note 11(a)) (BEE11()) - - (91,080,895) (91,080,895)
At 31 March 2012 RZE——&F=B=+—H - - - -
Exchange realignment R 186 2,246,322 - 2,246,508
Arising of acquisition of KB B A B EE

subsidiaries (note 32(a)) ( H5E32(a)) 11,887 93,592,847 - 93,604,734
Arising of acquisition of business KBTS EE

(note 32(d)) (BF&E32()) 7,414,161 2,206,854 - 9,621,015
Additions =1 2,416 - - 2,416
At 31 March 2013 RIE—Z=F=B=1+—H 7,428,650 98,046,023 - 105,474,673
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION ESip i
At 1 April 2011 A-ZE——FNB—H - - (3,548,787) (3,548,787)
Exchange realignment Bz - - (318,877) (318,877
Provided for the year REERE - - (9,794,471) (9,794,471)
Eliminated on reclassification as BN ERSIEH SR

held-for-sale (note 11(a)) (BzE11()) - - 13,662,135 13,662,135
At 31 March 2012 RZZ—_H=B=+—H - - - -
Exchange realignment B 1 131,414 - 131,415
Provided for the year NEERE 99 6,577,327 - 6,577,426
At 31 March 2013 R-B8—=%=HA=+—H 100 6,708,741 - 6,708,841
CARRYING VALUE IRMEE
At 31 March 2013 RZB—=F=RA=+—H 7428550 91,337,282 - 98,765,832

At 31 March 2012

R=F——F=R=1+—H
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18. BRCEE (&)

Intangible assets mainly represent i) various licenses and permits
acquired by the Group through the acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals
Group on 31 August 2012 as set out in note 32(a), ii) trademark and
permits acquired in the acquisition of business from Cynergy Group on
12 March 2013 as set out in noted 32(d) and iii) customer relationship in
Cheng Cheng acquired during the year 2011 which was disposed of in
current year.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group has obtained medicine production
licenses and permits that used to manufacture and sell the medicine and
drugs. The licenses and permits are granted by Guangdong Food and
Medicine Supervision and Administration Bureau and subject to renewal
every 5 years. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
licenses and permits can be renewed by the Group without significant
cost. Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the licenses and
permits using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
the licenses and permits of 8 years.

Tianda Australia has obtained permits that used to manufacture and
sell the healthcare products. The permits are granted by Therapeutic
Goods Administration, Australia and subject to renewal every year. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the permits can be renewed
by the Group without significant cost. Amortization is provided to write
off the cost of permits using the straight line method over the estimated
useful life of permits of 5 years.

The trademark includes several brand names acquired from Cynergy
Group which allow the Group to produce products under those brand
names. The trademark amounting to HK$7,414,161 is treated as having
indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute to net cash
inflows to the Group indefinitely. Therefore, it is not amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. It would be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.

Cheng Cheng had long and close business relationship with the major
customer, who was also the non-controlling shareholder of Cheng
Cheng. The acquisition of the customer base had allowed the Group to
stabilise the revenue base from packaging and printing. Amortisation
was provided to write off the cost of the customer relationship using the
straight-line method over the estimated life of the customer relationship
of 10 years. The amount was disposed of upon completion of the Asset
Swap on 31 August 2012.

For the purposes of impairment testing of the intangible assets held by
Tianda Australia, whereby its fair value is determined on a provisional
basis (note 32(d)), the management of the Group determined that
there is no impairment as the carrying amount approximated the
recoverable amount determined by reference to fair value less cost
to sell. For the impairment testing of the intangible assets held by
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group, they have been allocated to the CGU
representing Tianda Zhuhai. Details are set out in note 17.

BREETER)AEEEBR-F—Z
FENB=+—HWBRKEXLEFTE
BZEBETHBEEIFAUE, FBEHNE
1320), VR Z-ZE—=F=B+"HM
Cynergy Group W BB S RPN EE 2 FRIE R
AR, FEEEIASMYEE32(d) Rii) iR F
— FWEARBETZEFRBE, H
ERAEELE.

AREXEBENGARRENRHER
MRERZEREEARRTIE. §
BRI EHEREEmEnEEEE
BEY, AELFEN. AREEFR
SEEYUBEAXMRAERTNSZF
HRERFUEEE. EMARBRKTIE
st R EFHA 8 SR I EAEMEH AR
NEFAIB AT EINE.

KAXBRMNENEBHFTE, BREER
HEREER. FTUZEHBEXFI
Therapeutic Goods Administration #{tH, /8%
FEE, ANTEERE, KEEBTLL
BESEXN AN EEZEF IR, &
HBEARFIBEZ Mt EREE
T EFERLA BRI EAF AT B R A

7 12 € #% [@) Cynergy Group i1 BE 2 Z B &
[, BAEETUZERBEEEEEZ
ER. 7414161 B Tz2EEREAER
EERYBEE, EfEstETEREH
HAEEERRESRNEEE. A, B
FEEHUFEAFHBER, 5ELAETF
LU, MEEEsEETRENRm
WEMERS, SZEHRE.
AT ERFEVERIEZ 25
BIR, MAEMBRZIFERERE. KEE
FEREGWAEBEEERELERER
ZWis. EMEFBEZ G ESHTE
FERBESEMHEEFRER AT EEE
B, 2eER-_E——F&/)\B=1+—
HEESR=HELE.,

ARKBMATIFERFEE(HARE
EERERMGHESE (WEE2)) ) 2
EHARAMS, AEEEEERBUER
8, DHRZSFEIEENREERDTI
EeE(DE2EERREEREEMRLX)
BE. IRKEXEEMFEETLEEZ
WENRMS, BEESERERKKIEH
RERZREEEEN . FEHRMEET,
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19.

20.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

19. BIRRFEERE

HK$
BT
At 1 April 2011 RZFE—FUBE—H 3,961,891
Exchange realignment AR 186,031
Additions B 2,368,324
Impairment loss recognised in the year (note 11(b)) REEERZ BRI (MIEE1(0)) (3,851,286)
Reclassified as held-for-sale (note 11(b)) B EAFELE (KE10)) (2,664,960)

At 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013

R-E—_"F#=RB=1+—H.

—S—-"HNA—BAK
—E—=f=RA=1+—H -

Included in the above balance are expenditures incurred for carrying
out activities in relation to geological research over three (2012: three)
concession areas to evaluate the technical feasibility of exploration and
extraction of mineral resources and acquisition of exploration rights
from the PRC government to explore nonferrous metal resources in the
Yunnan Province of the PRC.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the directors of the Company
concluded that the exploration and evaluation of mineral resources
over one of the concession areas have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and decided to
discontinue such activities in the concession area. Therefore, the
carrying amount of this concession area of HK$3,851,286 was fully
impaired to profit or loss from discontinued operations prior to its
classification as an asset held-for-sale. In addition, the directors of the
Company consider that no impairment is considered necessary for the
other two concession areas prior to their classification as assets held-
for-sale as at 31 March 2012 and during the year ended 31 March 2013.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

UEERBER=E(-8——-F. =
@) BEREZ MEHRRHETE LT
HERNRRZFEERRZ XA TT
t, LA B BOAT AR B IR, LAED
ROEEEER e BIRERR.

RBEE_FE-—_"F=A=+—HILF
E, ARAEERBN—EEZEEY
RRFEEDERTLEZREE LGF
ZHEERREHE, SRERILEEER
Z2ZEES, Eit, ZEEREZRE
163,851,286 BT ERED ERFHELES
ERHERILEEXBBHmETEH
Wi, o, RZF—"F=A=+—
ARBE_FE—=F=ZRB=1+—HILF
E, AREEERR, sHEEZER
RESERHFHEEENBRETRH
B,

20. R—MEHERR ZE

2012
HK$
BT

Cost of unlisted investment in associate
Accumulated exchange realignment

Share of post-acquisition losses, net of dividends received FE{LIEEZESIE ( 2N EWARE )
EHOERFELE (1))

Reclassified as held-for-sale (note 11(a))

REERTZR EHIREZ A

13,825,570
2,207,770
(109,567)
(15,923,773)

The associate was accounted for using equity method prior to the
reclassification to assets classified as held-for-sale as at 31 March 2012
and was disposed of upon completion of the Asset Swap on 31 August
2012.

REHDEESERFIFHEEER,
RIE-—_HF=B=+—H, ZWER
BNEREDENER, WR-F—2F
NB=1+—HEEERTHELE.
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 20. R—MHEARZER (&)
As at 31 March 2012, the Group had interest in the following associate: RIE—Z-HF=B=+—H, A&£B8%®
TSN TSR
Attributable
Place of interest in
Form of establishment registered capital
Name of associate entity and operation held by the Group Principal activities
¥: 330
Ay 53 EEmESRh
BEXDEE tEEZEER REhES Frisimm s EiE 5
2012
Yunnan Huaning Xingning Incorporated PRC 25% Printing and sales of
Colour Material Printing Co., cigarette packaging
Limited (“Huaning Xingning”) packs and boxes
EREEREEINGRAT EEaiiinAvaA h EERESZEDR
([ #Ez=mEEE ) REHEE
Included in the cost of investment in an associate at 31 March 2012 was RIE2E—_HF=A=+—H, —E#KE
goodwill amounting to HK$2,215,030 arising on acquisition of Huaning REIZKRERABIERBEFEKEE
Xingning in prior years. EREBFTES 2 R5E 2,215,030 7T,
The movement of goodwill is set out below: AEZEBHIINT .
HK$
BT
COST 5%
At 1 April 2011 R_E—FNB—H 2,139,931
Exchange realignment ER A 75,099
Reclassified as held-for-sale (note 11(a)) EFPEAFEHE (KiFE11)) (2,215,030
At 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 nR-s—-—"f£=HB=1+-—H.
—E—_FMB—HR
—E—=%=R=1+—H -
No impairment loss was recognised in respect of goodwill included in the MERAR—EHELNDZIRENSEZ

investment in an associate. BERDEERIE.
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

20.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associate

is set out below:

Results for the year ended 31 March

R—HERHEXBDZERS (&)

ERAEBZHERRDZHMBENRE
HIWTF .

BE=B=t+—HLFEZXE

2013 2012

HK$ HK$

BT BT
(Note)
(BiIsE)

22,621,264 44,530,241

604,703 1,510,683

Revenue W
Depreciation &
Profit for the period/year HARE, EE Al

3,784,758 5,479,508

Group’s share of profit of an associate
for the period/year

REERE—EHERS
HAR, SR

946,190 1,369,877

Note:  The results represent the operation up to the completion date of the Asset Swap on 31 August

2012.

Financial position as at 31 March

M REDEEREEEERTRBER( ZE——F
NB=+—H)z&s,

R=RA=+—BZMEIRR

2012

HK$

BT

Total assets HEE 71,056,730

Total liabilities waE (16,221,760)

Net assets EEFE 54,834,970
Group's share of net assets of an associate AEBEEL—REBERAT

ZEEFE 13,708,743
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21.

22,

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS - INVESTMENT IN
AN INVESTEE COMPANY

The investment in an investee company at 31 March 2012 was
accounted for as an available-for-sale investment which represented the
Group’s 18.75% equity interest in the registered capital of T EIREKFZ
Ep4K S B BR2YE] (Yuxi Globe Colour Printing Carton Co., Ltd.) (“Globe
Printing”), a private limited company registered in the PRC engaged
in the business of printing and sales of cigarette packaging packs
and boxes. This investment was measured at cost less impairment at
31 March 2012 because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
was so significant that the directors of the Company were of the
opinion that its fair value could not be measured reliably. The amount at
31 March 2012 has been classified as held-for-sale in note 11(a).

During the year ended 31 March 2012, management of the Group
performed a review of the recoverable amount of the investment in
Globe Printing and no impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

21.

22,

A EIRE - IRER—RER
B2H

RIFE-—"F=RB=+—H, R—BH
RERAIZRENRSITHEERE,
ZREEASERETRERENEZE
RAB([IRKEED |, —ERPEER
ZIABRAE, #EEQRESIENR
NMIHERR ) ZEMEARZ 18.75% IRAHE
. HRZIBREZ M EEAREE
HLEBK, WEARDEFAREQNE
BEEITRFE, EMERZF—2F
ZRB=+—HBBYREARRERTE. R
—E-"HZR=+—HZEBRERK
H () D ERFELHE.

REE—_E——F=B=1+—HILEE
N, AEBZEEBECHIRIREKEE
Z®/REZIWEILEE, BIERERZN
MR ERE .

Raw materials Ity
Work in progress R
Finished goods SRk

=&

2012

HK$ HK$

BT BT

14,756,717 5,134,912

6,192,314 289,840

12,360,657 2,421,650

33,309,688 7,846,402

An amount of HK$62,066,036 (comprising raw materials of
HK$19,692,441, work in progress of HK$1,615,658 and finished goods
of HK$40,757,937) at 31 March 2012 has been classified as held-for-
sale in note 11(a).

RIEBE—Z-ZHF=B=+—HzZHRIE
62,066,036 7% Jo ( & 15 | #7 #1 19,692,441
T, 7E 8 51,615,658 7T & B L S
40,757,937 70 ) ER M 1) D EA S
EHE,
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 23. [EUWIBRFR R FENIEIE R HAth
RECEIVABLES FEUZER
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
T BT
Trade and bills receivables TEWBR SR FEIK 24 23,158,958 1,081,153
Prepayments to suppliers At ER TR RIS 1,823,666 1,360,977

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EH B, &S NFETIE 2,147,417 2,027,122

Total trade and bills receivables and other receivables EWBRF R FEW =S

RE KA 27,130,041 4,469,252
As at 31 March 2012, an amount of HK$31,652,040 (comprising (i) trade RZFE-—ZHF=B=+—H, 8%
and bills receivables of HK$22,005,609, (i) dividends receivable from 31,652,040 7T ( &L ¥E (i) FE W BR X M2 FE Wt
available-for-sale investments — investments in an investee company 18 22,005,609/87T ; (i) BTHEHERE
and an associate of HK$6,960,242, (iii) prepayments to suppliers of - R—REERERER—EHE AT ZE
HK$363,595 and (iv) other receivables, deposits and prepayments of K2 B% 5. 6,960,242 7 7T ; (iii) @ it FERS FR{T
HK$2,322,594) has been classified as held-for-sale in note 11. FRIE 363,595 BT R (iv) EfbFEW TR . &%
R IE(IFRIE 2,322,594 #7T ) 2 FRIE S KM
TN DERFELHE,
The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days to certain AEEEFERETRZERZEEHN
number of its trade customers. The aging analysis of trade and bills FIIXKENKR,. HE-_F—_F=H
receivables including those classified as held-for-sale as at 31 March =+—HLEFE, REFHEAHH(HEH
2012 is presented based on the invoice date, which approximated the ZWN\FERBEEE ) 292 FEIARFIR
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting date: e ER ( BESERIFELES ) KR
FHRZARE O
2013 2012
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Trade receivables FEWIBRER
Within 60 days 60 XA 9,255,770 10,840,158
Over 60 days #BiE 60K 4,062,308 12,246,604
13,318,078 23,086,762
Bills receivables e =R
Within 60 days 60 KM 1,432,498 -
Over 60 days BiE 60X 8,408,382 -

9,840,880 -

23,158,958 23,086,762
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits of each customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year. All of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have good credit
quality assessed by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$4,062,308 (2012:
HK$12,246,604) which are past due as at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered
recoverable based on historical experience.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is as follow:

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

23. FEUSBRSR Bz FEUTZE 15 K H {th

FEUITR (%)

REMEAFEFR, FEESHEE
BERZEEFRETME, TREEN
ERZEERE. EFAZZRETE
FRT—R. BRI REEZE
KEARTISE R EE A RIFIEEFT AR

AEBZBKRARBRZIBEHREIE
BE A S 1£4,062,308 BT ( ZB——4F ;
12,246,604 38 70 ) WAL R &5 A EIHR = FEU
R, HREEEEESAEHEE
FMIEREBRFRKBNPEREAT KD,

Eitt, AEBEIESZSHRIEELRE
BEiEEME.

AERTERZFERFE TR
o ZEFMWERIZ FHIRREWT -

CEIHAHEIE SR iRE 2 RIS ARTA 2 ARG

2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT

61-90 days 61ZE 90X
Over 90 days B 90 K

2,242,320 5,981,910
1,819,988 6,264,694

4,062,308 12,246,604

The Group’s trade and bills receivables and other receivables excluding
those classified as held-for-sale as at 31 March 2012 denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities are set out below:

FEBUSEEERZIRERLINZ
EBINEZRBERARBRER, &
HtBKWR( FBER-F—-F=8
=+—HPERHEHEE ) HIIMT -

2012
HKS$
BIT

HK$ BIT

2,861




150

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire MRk

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZE_—&F—=fF=F=1+—HILFE

24,

25.

BANK DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank deposits, which comprise short-term fixed deposits with
original maturity of 1-6 months (2012: 1-6 months), carry market interest
rates ranging from 0.18% to 2.6% (2012: 0.1% to 3.3%) per annum.

Bank balances carry variable interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 0.35% (2012: 0.01% to 0.5%) per annum.

The Group’s bank deposits, bank balances and cash excluding those
classified as held-for-sale that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the respective group entities are set out below:

24. IRITER. RITERRRE

RITEF(BRRIBAAE—=AER
(Z8B——&F ., —=XER)ZEHELH
FR) mHIBENRNF0.18% E 2.6%( —
BT, 01%FE33% )55,

RITERIENF0.01% E0.35%( —F——
F.0.01%ZE0.5% ) ZZEEFEALE,

FEBUSEEERZINRERLIIZ
E¥INEZRITER. RITERRRE
(FREIRFEHES ) HIWT -

2013 2012

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

HK$ BT 108,096,007 226,048,392
Us$ ES 16,008,386 34,236,526
EUR BTT 9,196 -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. E(TERFX B E Mt FE(TFR

2013 2012

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Trade payables FE(TBRSR 14,768,032 5,007,193
Deposits received from customers BERWNRZZE 12,466,497 1,662,664
Value added tax payables FE(TIGER 2,941,604 2,200,787
Other payables and accrued staff cost Hitb B R EETE TR 24,849,631 3,916,458
Total trade and other payables (TR EL BT 748 4R 55,025,764 12,787,102

An amount of HK$54,080,186 (comprising (i) trade payables of
HK$21,011,617, (i) note payables of HK$25,998,450, (iii) value added
tax payables of HK$2,661,342 and (iv) other payables and accruals of
HK$4,408,777) at 31 March 2012 has been classified as held-for-sale in
note 11.

R—E—Z—_F=B=Z+—H, &
#154,080,186% 7T ( & ¥&E()/E 1T BR X
21,011,617 87T ; (i) FE{T 248 25,998,450 &
TT ; (iii) FE(T 18 (B2 2,661,342 B 75 R (iv) &
(T TR FEET B FE 4,408,777 #8578 ) 23K
IERMEE 11 EDRERIFIEHE.
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s trade payables including
those classified as held-for-sale at the end of the reporting period:

25.

FEATRRFA R EL (TR (&)

REBZEMRA ( BEDERFFHE
& )RREPRZDWAT -

2013 2012
HK$ HK$
B BT

Trade payables (note) FE(TRRSR ( BiFEE )
Within 60 days 60 XA 12,717,119 20,255,230
61-90 days 61ZE90K 448,915 1,234,199
Over 90 days BB 90X 1,601,998 4,529,381
14,768,032 26,018,810

Note payables FEfTERR

Within 60 days 60 KM 18,354,058
61-90 days 61ZE90K 7,644,392
25,998,450
Total trade payables FEfTBRFRAEEE 14,768,032 52,017,260

Note: The aging analysis of trade payables presented is based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

The credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 30 days to 120
days. The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents sufficient to ensure that all payables are within the credit
timeframe.

Included in the trade payables as at 31 March 2013, HK$6,232,435 has
been paid by endorsed bills for which the maturity date has not yet fallen
due as at 31 March 2013 (see note 33).

et BT IRRZ BRE DT OIRIBIIRE IR 2 R
BEAME5.

BRRBEENZEERNTFIXRE0
X, REBEBRUTHESEHACZRERE
SEEERKE, UREBFREEMCRY
RIEEHRNZ(T.

R-CE—=H=A=+—HZEMEE
HEOERIPEHERNMZEEERE
6,232,4353870 ( BKFEE33 ),
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26. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 26. ERTH#EED
HK$
BT
At 1 April 2011 RIE—FNBE—H 1,943,812
Exchange realignment ErRaaEE 61,099
Credited to profit or loss FTAE= (358,706)
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 RIE——&F=H=1+—HK
—F—_FNBE—H 1,646,205
Exchange realignment AR 14,129
Credited to profit or loss FTAE= (362,898)
At 31 March 2013 RZFE—=F=B=+—H 1,297,436
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEMEEZDIFTANT -
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current liabilities* mERE" 370,696 365,823
Non-current liabilities EnBaE 926,740 1,280,382
1,297,436 1,646,205
The carrying amount of the government grants which is expected to be released to profit or loss * BT H#BZ REERSEAREIER, T8
in the next twelve months is classified as current. RFR+ZEB RN EBEA .
Note: BT
Grants were designated for the cost of acquisition of certain plant and equipment for the production of a ZEEERARBEE TEEEYERLEENRFTZ
pharmaceutical and biotechnology product and were deferred and are released to income on a straight- ETMBERBREZRA, TERERNEGHEEZTE
line basis over the expected useful lives of the related assets. HAOTE R HRIR B IR E NN .
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27, BBE
Number
of shares Amount
R RE R &8
HK$
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each EREE10BITZEER
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 R-E—FNE—H.
—E——#=R=t+-Ak
—_E—=F=H=+—H 4,000,000,000 400,000,000

Issued and fully paid: EETRAT .
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 RIE—&FBE—H.
“FE—"F=R=1+—HK
“E—=f=pB=+—H 1,870,118,160 187,011,816
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28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 28. IRERIEEI(E
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and AFEERUTFERRBZTERIERE
movements thereon during the current and prior years: BEREEEHNT .
Fair value Withholding
adjustment tax on
of property, Accelerated Prepaid distributable
plant and tax Tax lease  Intangible profit of
equipment depreciation losses  payments assets subsidiaries Total
X, HELS
BER=E AR
ZRREE lljt fafs il
HE WERE RAESE BHERE BREE B8 L
HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

BT BT BT BT BT BT BT

At 1 April 2011 R-E—&NE—H - 219 (279)  1,202981 21111016 4454289 26,858,286
Exchange realignment ERAR - - - 4624 692,088 36,794 773706
(Credit) charge to profitor loss ~ ZERBZSI (TN ) $0R% - (80) 80 (38,038) (2448618) 5185272 2,698,616
Reversal upon payment fIFREER - - - - - (5706472) (5706,472)

Transferred to disposal groups AP EEAIHELHE
as held-for-sale (note 11(a)) ~ ZHHEARI ( KfsE1(a)) - -

(1,299567) (19,354,686) (2,328.763) (22,983,016)

At 31 March 2012 and RZE——%#=B=+-H
1 April 2012 R-_F—_"HMB—H - 199 (199) - - 1641120 1,641,120
Exchange realignment ErEE 98,425 - - 35470 528,727 - 983622
(Credit) charge to profitor loss  7E38 M (FT N\ ) 308 (81,376) (199) 199 (294722) (1644,332) 3197289 1,176,859
Reversal upon payment (R - - - - - (3424252) (3424,252)
Avising on acquisition of EBEEHBAT]
subsidiaries (note 32(a)) MEEZTE (Kf3E32e)) 4,168,672 - - 15007622 23398212 - 42,664,506
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=F=1+—H 4,185,721 - - 15150370 22,282,607 1,414,157 43,041,855
The Group’s subsidiaries that are tax resident in the PRC are subject AEBZHWBATIATREERELS, &
to the PRC dividend withholding tax of 5% or 10% for those non-PRC HNPERIE, HEREENRBER
resident immediate holding company registered in Hong Kong and the REBHEMZIFPEEREEERAT
British Virgin Islands, respectively, when and if undistributed earnings ERRDRBENARE, MBERET
are declared to be paid as dividends out of profits that arose on or after BEE/N\F—B—HEZEBEEZH
1 January 2008. Accordingly, a provision for deferred taxation in respect R, BIZBETENSBIS%10% 2+
of withholding tax on undistributed earnings of HK$14,141,000 (2012: ERSTENR. Bit, RBEEZFE—=
HK$62,986,000, of which HK$46,575,000 was related to disposal groups F=RB=1+—HILEFE, ERFXDEE
held-for-sale) has been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2013. MZIENRER14,141,00BT( = F

—4F ;62,986,000 75, H 46,575,000
BTHEMEHEZ HERRIER ) ZIRTE
RIBREE,
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28.

29.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

At 31 March 2013, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$169,813,000
(2012: HK$157,640,200) available to offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses of nil
(2012: HK$1,200). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$169,813,000 (2012: HK$157,639,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All these losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 March 2012, the Group has other deductible temporary differences
of HK$1,081,000 (2013: nil) in respect of excess of accounting
depreciation over depreciation allowances. No deferred tax asset had
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it
was not probable that taxable profit would be available against which the
deductible temporary differences could be utilised.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group’s Hong Kong subsidiaries operate a Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contribution are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
MPF Scheme up to a maximum contribution of HK$1,000 per employee
monthly (increase to HK$1,250 per month since 1 June 2012), which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$144,177 (2012:
HK$87,958) represents contributions paid to the MPF Scheme by the
Group in respect of the current year.

28.

29.

IREIRIAG(E (&)

RZBE—=FE=HB=+—H, A&H
AR RREF Z REBHRIEE
18 £169,813,000/ Tt ( — T — — &,
157,640,20038 7T ). EMRBEEGEETBT
(ZE—TF . 1,200 ) BZIEILERE
BE, HR#BLTEIIREENBE, &
i 4 53 1 B8 3 TE RS 5 169,813,000 38 7T ( =
T— 5 . 157,639,000 87T ) EIEER
BEE., rE%SHETERRPEE.

RIBE——HF=HF=+—H, ~x&EZ
Hitt TR E =R et E AR
EEETNS 51,081,008t —F—=
F . ). OREEREFTERTINRE
FREZEZOREAK, ML EREET
MR =R RIRERIEEE.

B tEFIETE
FEEREEWBADAHAERSH
BRESHBZREBRTZ —ERHMELR
ERIBERETE ([ RESHE ] ). 4t
RDREEEFFSZED IS, I
ERBRESH B RA I EES
PIiBR

BERHEICEEHEALEECEEDSRH
#a, THBISHEESEE, A&
ZREHRTRYS T RESTEBLE
FEE. AEERRESHEEEER
FREBR %MK, UEEESBMHX
1,0008T(BZF—FB—Hictg
MEZB125087T) B LR, BESZ
BT o

HRIEZRERNINMR Z R AR 14417758875 ( =
F—TF .87958BTT ) IENEELRER
MIRBEEETEIEUT 2 WK,



TIANDA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | KKEEFRAT —F—=FF%K (155

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ara M ps R AT

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EZ_—F—=fF=F=+—HIFE

29.

30.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (continued)

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members of state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions. For the year ended 31
March 2013, the total cost charged to profit or loss (including continuing
and discontinued operations) of HK$4,280,222 (2012: HK$2,921,677)
represents contributions paid to the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme by the Group in respect of the current year.

29.

BIAEREE (&)

FEERTEWBRRZEETIPEHK
FEBEZERBAREFFEIZHRE. &
EWBADRTESTLERAZBHETD
EERiB IR FIETEME L MR, AEER
ZBARBANFEZE—BEDRED
iEEZHR. BE-_F—=F=A8
=+—HILEFE, REZSNTIRZER
T ERFECERCRIEREXT)
428022270 ( —FE—"F ;. 29216778
T ERFEAEEFBERIBAEFIFTE
B 25K

Continuing operations HEREER
Discontinued operations B4R IF R

OPERATING LEASE
The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in respect of
office premises (including continuing and discontinued operations) during
the year amounted to HK$5,325,868 (2012: HK$5,748,149).

30.

2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT
3,124,364 984,190
1,155,858 1,937,487
4,280,222 2,921,677
RN
REBIEREEA

FRREEHOREERAEWES T
ZREHEENE(BEFELERER
1A 32 ) 55325 868 T ( —B——
£ . 5,748,149 87T ),

Continuing operations HEREHER
Discontinued operations B4R IR 2R

2013 2012
HK$ HK$
& BT
4,830,424 4,738,920
495,444 1,009,229
5,325,868 5,748,149
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30. OPERATING LEASE (continued) 30. &LEEHS (@)
The Group as lessee (continued) FEEERFRBEA (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future REBEHER, FAEERAFTZHZLE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which BT 2 KRR REHEERERELD
fall due as follows: g
2013 2012
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FN 4,717,680 5,189,835
In the second to fifth year inclusive MEERFN (BEEEMSE) 3,609,154 9,538,032
8,326,834 14,727,867
Operating leases are negotiated for an average term of 3 years and REROKEREZFIFHRRIE, M
rentals are fixed over the relevant lease term. AERIEREERNIYREEREE.
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 3. BXERE
2012
HKS
BT
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of property, FtE:T 4B IR S AT HRE
plant and equipment contracted for but not provided in BB WEBYE. MENRE
the consolidated financial statements ZERHX 16,886,529 3,781,374
Included in the capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of RIFE—ZHF=B=+—H, HETD
property, plant and equipment contracted for but not provided in the BERRESUBREREEZWEY
consolidated financial statements at 31 March 2012 is an amount of ¥ BERZEZEAHXBIFEHEER

HK$3,451,413 relating to discontinued operations. L& FE BRI FRIE 3,451,413 87T,
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL 32. INEEMIB AT, %55 HEMEB

OF SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the Asset Swap Agreement set out in notes 1 and 11, the
Group acquired the 100% equity interest of Tianda Pharmaceuticals
Group and a shareholder’s loan for a total consideration of
HK$380,000,000. The Acquisition Consideration was determined based
on the fair value of the shareholder’s loan with principal amount of
HK$170,969,488 and the fair value of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group
of HK$220,543,164 determined using income approach based on the
discounted cash flows. The acquisition had been accounted for using
the acquisition method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was HK$99,894,629.

(a) Acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group

Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group is principally engaged in research,
development, production and sales of pharmaceutical and
healthcare products primarily in the PRC. Tianda Pharmaceuticals
Group is acquired to expand the Group’s pharmaceuticals
operations.

As disclosed in note 22 of the Group’s condensed consolidated
interim financial information for the period ended 30 September
2012, the provisional fair values were used for recognising
the intangible assets acquired on the acquisition of Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Group in August 2012. The fair value assessment
was completed during second half of the current financial year.

25
REBMFITRNAHEEERRBRE, &
£ B L4821 {Z 380,000,000 TTEE B XA
EEEFHILR AR —EREE
Ko WEBRIBTHIZAEEES 170,969,488 16
TTZREEFRNAERKAEZEERLL
KR EIRIFTEREREEEZAREER
220,543,164 FBITEEE . WEBE LAMIEEIZN
BR. WEEELRE %5 99,894,629

TCo

(a) WBBKRAZEREME

AREXEFFTER PR REE
RRBEmAR. BE. £ERHE
EXR. WBRXRAXEXEEZEN
RERANEEZBEER,

HMAEREE_SE——FNB
=+ HIHEZ GRS P
ERMEF2FIRE, AEBKER
NRBEERR-ZE——F/\BK
BRAEXEEBFFNENERES
E. 2AREEFHEREITBREE
THETRK.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #E_F—=F=H=+—

32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL

HILFE

OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@) Acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group (continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group

32. WIEBHIB 2
28 (@)

Y8) R HE RS

(a) WIEBRAREERERME (/&)
TN RAEXEEEERGE

recognised at the date of acquisition on 31 August 2012 were as RWEBHP_FT——F/\B=+—
follows: BEERWT .
Fair value
LREE
HK$
BT
Net assets acquired Frig s EEFE
Property, plant and equipment WM. BERRE 91,547,605
Deposit for acquisition of property, plant and equipment KB, MENMREZZES 371,825
Prepaid lease payments FE{IEEIE 89,572,608
Intangible assets W EE 93,604,734
Inventories 7E 21,909,414
Trade and other receivables FEW R R ELABFEWIER 23,562,781
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 2,469,341
Bank balances and cash IRITEGAIRS 40,571,496
Trade and other payables FEATBRFR R EL AR (T TR (38,485,856)
Amounts due to related companies FE(IBBEARFIE (2,354,071)
Loan from Tianda Group (note) AAREBIREZER (M) (159,456,836)
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERIEES (42,664,506)
120,648,535
Goodwill kS 99,894,629
Fair value of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group RABEZEEFBNREE 220,543,164
Assignment of loan to Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group (note) BT R ABEZEE 2 &7 (FizE) 159,456,836
380,000,000

MIEE  RKEE B A 25 4 £0170,969,488 75
TTZERDRAKREDREEES R
FEETALEE, ERAERMUL A
B, MAXE£ERANEERNRES
u.biﬂﬂau%?’x ¥ \ifﬁﬁﬁﬁéaégﬁ
BR=FEARWE, &It, ERCEBIZ
BIEFIREES% SHEEH AR R
ZBRIBEZARAREAAEE. &
AEEERAGE M BIRENEE.

Note: Loan to Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group with principal amount of HK$170,969,488 was
assigned by Tianda Group to the Group pursuant to the Asset Swap Agreement. The
loan is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable when Tianda Pharmaceuticals
Group has generated sufficient cash flows. The Company expects the amount would be
received in 3 years. Accordingly, the loan has been adjusted to fair value by computing
the present value of estimated future cash flows at an effective interest rate of 5%
per annum. The loan amount has been eliminated in these consolidated financial

statements.
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL 32. INEEMIB AT, %55 HEMEB
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) »F) (&)

(a) WBBRAZEREME (&)

(a) Acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group (continued)

The property, plant and equipment includes office and factory
buildings, the prepaid lease payments represent a piece of land
located in the PRC with medium-term lease of 40 years and the
intangible assets represent primarily various licenses and permits
identified in Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group. The fair value at 31
August 2012 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
on that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer, not connected to the Group. The property,
plant and equipment has been valued on depreciated replacement
cost approach. The land has been valued on direct comparison
approach, while the licenses and permits have been valued on
income approach.

The fair value of inventories at the date of acquisition approximates
to the selling price less cost of disposal and a reasonable profit
allowance.

The fair value of intangible assets has been finalised on the basis
of a valuation using income approach by Asset Appraisal Limited
during the second half of the current financial year.

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$23,562,781. The gross contractual
amounts of those trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$23,694,864 at the date of acquisition. The best estimate at
acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected amounted to HK$132,083.

ME. BERREEERLIERM
BEF ; AMEERIERMARPE
Z—E i (RBPEATRASF A+
FI)REREE(EBIERREEE
EE#ZETHREFAE ). —
F-"F/\B=+—HZAREE
DBERDHEEEFEHREEERA
B ( BASEBEIEREZ B SER
EEHER ) REBFETZAERE
E. ME. MBERRBLUINEEE
BAEETHE. THUEEER
RETEE, MRRRFTERILL
Was A E T A (E.

FERWERPZAREEEHEE
BEREERARGEDFHBEZ
EERE.

BREEZ ARBEDERPHIE
EEMEEEERADREMEE
ETHFLUWEERETZHENR

REERER, KRR EEK
MZ NRfE(E A 23,562,781 75, M
2 FE W AR TN EL b FE W FR AR KL BB
HEIZ @& 4% %8523,694,864 8
To. RUWEERE, FAalIEXKE
BRRERNEREMET 5 132,083
JGCo
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL 32. WEBHIB AT, %55 HEMEB
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 28 (#)

(a) WIEBRAREERERME (&)

(@) Acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group (continued)

Pursuant to the Asset Swap Agreement, Tianda Group irrevocably
warrants and guarantees to the Company that the consolidated
net profit after taxation as shown in the consolidated financial
statements of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group prepared under
HKFRSs before the fair value adjustments arisen from the
acquisition will not be less than HK$18,500,000 for the period
commencing from 1 September 2012 to the date falling 12 months
after such date. If the actual consolidated net profit after taxation of
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group is less than HK$18,500,000, then
Tianda Group shall pay to the Company in cash for the shortfall
on a dollar to dollar basis. The management has assessed the
fair value of the aforesaid contingent consideration on 31 August
2012 and 31 March 2013 and determined that the fair value is not
significant.

The goodwill arose in the acquisition because the cost of
combination includes the control premium. In addition, the
consideration paid for the combination effectively includes amounts
in relation to the assembled workforce and synergies to the Group’s
existing business, such as sharing of research expertise and wider
coverage of sales network for the Group’s existing pharmaceutical
products.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group contributed approximately
HK$57,030,586 and HK$3,925,387 revenue and profit respectively
for the period between the date of acquisition and the end of
the reporting period after taking into account the additional
depreciation/ amortisation of property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payment and intangible asset on the basis of fair
value arising in the initial accounting.

If the acquisition has been completed on 1 April 2012, total Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2013 from continuing
operations would have been HK$227,335,305, and profit for the
year ended 31 March 2013 from continuing operations would have
been HK$57,457,021. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of the revenue
and results of the operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2012,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

RIBEEERBZE, RAEBFRA
BEBEAAABERRESRE, XX
GBREEAREREBEEBUBREE
AlfRE 2 GEMBEREF~BEZ
BE—_FNB—HEEZHEZE12{E
BEHILHEFHKBEEEEEZ
NABEABRGIZRREES SR
YA/ 1R 18,500,000 38 TT o i R A 2E
¥EBERRRESSMTOR
18,500,000/87c, BIRKEEERE
BURSAAANTZ(TEERIE,
SEEEF M LAFARER S
——FENB=+—HRZE—=H
=B=1+—HZAREE, LEE
NABEUAREK,

HREHAABEEEE, FEit
WEBEEEE. i, ez T
ZREEREEEFAEEREER
ZEREHNHRIBEIUE (FlanzhA
EERAEZBEERHEMARES
NEERZHERE ) BRZNIE,

BERMENRBEEZAREES
HiE, BA\VE. BENREZLEE
SNEE . FEIREMBRE
FEEE, BWEHREEREH
REARE, RAEZXEFAAEEZ
W\ Bz ig T 73 Bl & 8R40 57,030,586 78
7T 3,925,387 7T .

HKER_-_E——_FNE—HER
B, "EEBEE_E—=5=8
=t+—HIEFEEREFESESEE
Z 48T N FE 227,335,305 75, 10
BE_ZS—=H£=F=+—H1
FEREFECESEBZRINES
57,457,021 75, HEEEREMH 2
EZ, F—EEWEBER-E—_F
MB—H=KIER FAEBRERA
EIZEBWANREEZIEE, I
TRESREXEEZTEI.
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL 32. INEEMIB AT, %55 HEMEB
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) »F) (&)
(a) Acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group (continued) (a) UHEBRKEERLEE (&)

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ profit of the Group had Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Group been acquired at the beginning of the
current period, the directors have calculated depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, amortisation of prepaid lease
payments and intangible assets on the basis of the fair values
arising in the initial accounting for the business combination.

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the Acquisition
Consideration is to be partly settled by the Disposal Consideration.
An analysis is set out below:

REEMAKREXEBRRTHE
VEBKWBZAEE BF | &EF
K, EXCHEME. BERRE
e BNEERERELEER
#H, BEQEBRAHZNL SR
EEZRREE.

IRIBHC S, WS EER S Y
EFIEREHHITY. HIEIIN
T

HK$
BT

Satisfied by: A .
Disposal Consideration (note 32(b) and (c)) HESIER(E (FFE32(0) K (c)) 302,200,000
Cash consideration HERE 77,800,000
380,000,000

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group:

KWIERAEXEBEEZRS R
R

HK$

BT

Cash consideration paid EfRERE (77,800,000)
Bank balance and cash acquired FrliBiRITaERR R IR S 40,571,496

(37,228,504)
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL 32. WESHMIB AR, 555 HHEME
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) »E) (&)
(b) Disposal of packaging and printing business (b) HESIREDRIE
As referred to in note 11(a), on 31 August 2012, the Group FRANFFEE 11(a) BTk, RZF—ZF
disposed of its packaging and printing business upon completion NB=+—H, dEERTKEE
of the Asset Swap. The net assets of the packaging and printing ERBFHEHGORIRER, 03
business at the date of disposal on 31 August 2012 were as ENRIEBREERR-F——F/)\
follows: B=+—HzZEEFENT .
31 August 2012
—F—_"fF/\B=1+—H
HK$
BT
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed of to Tianda Group: HEFRAEBEZ BEREBEHHT :
Property, plant and equipment WM. BEREE 62,196,264
Prepaid lease payments FafffEMRIE 7,191,352
Goodwill S 44,085,670
Intangible assets W EE 72,855,774
Deposit for acquisition of property, plant and equipment BB . MENREZES 4,133,022
Interest in an associate S—REBE A T s 16,703,518
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
- investment in an investee company - IRER—EWIREAT 32,465,141
Inventories 7E 37,780,614
Trade and other receivables FEWIBR R R EL AR FEWIFR 22,222,842
Amounts due from related companies B EENTIFNIE 5,614,128
Bank deposits RITER 164,861,927
Bank balances and cash IRITESRRIRS 41,256,095
Trade and other payables J?Eﬁﬁﬁ%’)i&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%’)’\ (44,843,003)
Amounts due to related companies iR EUNCIEN (8,542,292)
Dividend payable to non-controlling shareholders iZRE=E HxﬂxﬁZﬁx,u (38,402,264)
Tax payable FETIRIE (3,128,369)
Deferred tax liabilities BFEFRIEEE (21,131,740)
Net assets disposed of FrHEEERE 395,318,679
Gain on disposal of packaging and printing business: HEGRERIZERE 2 ES .
Disposal consideration of packaging and printing business ~ EJ3EENRI7E > HERE 288,000,000
Deemed capital contribution from the ultimate holding BIEREEKRATHEE
company (2,605,827)
Fair value of packaging and printing business disposed of ~ FrHESEEEIRIZER 2 ARDEE 285,394,173
Net assets disposed of FrHEEERE (395,318,679)
Non-controlling interests JEipR R 117,193,432
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the REREBETIEGER EEER
net assets of the packaging and printing business ZBRERIEBEEFE
reclassified to profit or loss on loss of control of 2 BEERERE
the business 1,778,823

Gain on disposal before transaction cost NSRRI HERE 9,047,749
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL 32. INEEMIB AT, %55 HEMEB
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) »F) (&)

(b) HESRENRIZER (&)

(b) Disposal of packaging and printing business (continued)

After deduction of the transaction cost and other tax, the net gain
on disposal of packaging and printing business is HK$5,336,647.

The fair value of packaging and printing business disposed of at
31 August 2012 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried on that date provided by Asset Appraisal Limited based on
discounted cash flow analysis. Accordingly, the excess of disposal
consideration of packaging and printing business over the fair
value of HK$2,605,827 was recorded in equity reserve as deemed
capital contribution from the ultimate holding company.

The disposal gain includes i) fair value gain of HK$2,783,439
arising on available-for-sale investments - investment in
an investee company and ii) an amount of HK$1,778,823,
representing the reclassification of the exchange reserve arisen
from the translation of financial statements of the subsidiaries with
functional currency of RMB, to the Company’s functional currency
of HK$, before the change in functional currency of the Company
in 2010 from HK$ to RMB, directly to profit or loss upon disposal. In
addition, HK$11,884,666, representing the exchange reserve arisen
from the translation of financial statements of the subsidiaries with
functional currency of RMB to the Group’s presentation currency
of HK$, subsequent to the change in the Company’s functional
currency in 2010 is transferred directly to accumulated profits.

HRXZRAREMKRIER, HE
BEEENRZE 75 2 W8 1 F{E 735,336,647
%ﬁc

RTE—_"F/\B=1+—HFRHE

BEIRBIEBZAAREBEDERS
HIZEEETEBEENERATDRERE
RESRESTRERFTETZM
EEE. Alt, SEMORIEHELE
REBHADEEZ £%582,605,827
BITRESEEBANREBRIERER
BERATZHE.

ZIEHEWKRZEE ) I HER
BE-R—BHREABSZREESE
2R IE (B F52,783,439 8 7T K )
1,778,823 7T, IEEHER, BiE
TE-EFARNTNEEEBBT
HAARKESNEERAEARE
ZHBATMBEERERERAAT
BB TTMEEZ ERFEHEE
BEEFoBEERED. 9, AZF
—EERNTDNEEKREERE, 15
MEEERABARBZ HBATIE
RERBREAREB RSB ITAH
A TE R (15 11,884,666 5 ST E 1288
BERER.

HK$
BT

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELZRESMHITFEE .
Cash consideration received EWRENE -
Bank balances and cash disposed of FriEiRTERRIES (41,256,095)

(41,256,095)

The impact of the packaging and printing business on the Group’s
results and cash flows in the current year and prior year is
disclosed in note 11(a).

REFER E—FEGORINRBIER
HAEEXENRREREZXER
BifEE 11(a) I 2R
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL 32. WEBEHIB AT, /%55 HEMEB
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) »E) (&)
(c) Disposal of mineral resources business (c) HEREGEIRES
As referred to in note 11(b), on 31 August 2012, the Group SRANFFEE 11(b) BTk, MZF—4&
disposed of its mineral resources business upon completion of the NB=+—H, *&EBERTHREE
Asset Swap. The net assets of the mineral resources business at ERBEEHBEERRER. KH
the date of disposal on 31 August 2012 were as follows: SRR -"F-—_—F/\B=+—H,

IBERREBEEREUT

31 August 2012
—&—-"f)\R=1+—H
HK$
BT
Gain on disposal of mineral resources business: HEEERRERB IS -
Disposal consideration of mineral resources business EERRERZHERE 14,200,000
Deemed capital contribution from the ultimate holding BIEREIERATZHE
company (1,875,829)
Fair value of mineral resources business disposed of FrhEREERER L ARERE 12,324,171
Net assets disposed of Rt EEEEE
Property, plant and equipment ME. BERERE (1,100,789)
Exploration and evaluation assets BRI G EE (6,751,321)
Other receivables HAthFEIEK (404,158)
Bank deposits SRITHEER (3,889,878)
Bank balances and cash IRfTESRRERES (7,186,134)
Other payables HABETK 107,636
Loans from ultimate holding company RIEBIR N EIRMEZER 6,182,026
(13,042,618)
Non-controlling interests IEI=p R 718,447
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the KEEBEHIESETDEEER
net assets of the minerals resources business ZHEERLREREERE
reclassified to profit or loss on loss of control of ZREERERE
the business 3,257,263
Gain on disposal before transaction cost R Z A AR HEW = 3,257,263
After deduction of the transaction cost, the net gain on disposal of MR ZHAE, HEBERIRE

mineral resources business is HK$2,546,161. B2 W R EA 2,546,161 BT
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL 32. INEEMIB AT, %55 HEMEB
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) »F) (&)

(c) HETRAEREIRER (&)

(c) Disposal of mineral resources business (continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the carrying value
of the net assets of mineral resources business disposed of
approximate to its fair value of mineral resources business as
the operation is still in the very beginning stage. Accordingly, the
excess of disposal consideration of mineral resources business
over the fair value of HK$1,875,829 was recorded in equity reserve
as deemed capital contribution from the ultimate holding company.

The disposal gain includes an amount of HK$3,257,263,
representing the reclassification of the exchange reserve arisen
from the translation of financial statements of the subsidiaries with
functional currency of RMB, to the Company’s functional currency
of HK$, before the change in functional currency of the Company
in 2010 from HK$ to RMB, directly to profit or loss upon disposal.
In addition, HK$463,168, representing the exchange reserve arisen
from the translation of financial statements of the subsidiaries with
functional currency of RMB to the Group’s presentation currency
of HK$, subsequent to the change in the Company’s functional
currency in 2010 is transferred directly to accumulated profits.

KNBEERE, HRATHEEE
BEBREBDERAESERE, H
FEEZROEEBERRERZ
NABEESE. AL, EERE
BzHEREBEAREBEEZEEE
1875829 B TR ERFEBETIESR
EREERATZHENER.

218 HE W 55 B 1E £ 483,257,263 18
7T, BEHER, BEE—FF
RKABINEE KRB TEAEARE
BIEIEEEAEAREZHMEBAT
B EREEALNTNEEERES
TTMEEZERKEREEEH S
FiET, 4, EZE—FEAR
ARBZHBARDMBERERES
AEBEHREBTHEEERRE
8463,166/8 T HIZEIR E Retinfl .

HK$
BT

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHESMEITEE .
Cash consideration received EWIRERE -
Bank balances and cash disposed of FriERTERRIES (7,186,134)
(7,186,134)

The impact of the mineral resources business on the Group’s
results and cash flows in the current year and prior year is
disclosed in note 11(b).

BEERFXBHAERFIFER L
—FEXENRRERBZLERK
= 1(b) #2355
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL 32. INEEMIB AT, %55 HENE
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 28 (')

(d) M@ Cynergy Group ZEE 255

(d) Acquisition of business from Cynergy Group

As referred to note 1, Tianda Australia, an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into an acquisition
agreement with independent third parties, Cynergy Group, to
acquire a business from Cynergy Group which is principally
engaged in marketing, sale and distribution of health care products
in Australia for a consideration of approximately AU$1,281,000
(equivalent to HK$10,399,819). The purpose of acquisition is to
expand and diversify the pharmaceutical segment by acquiring a
well-developed business in Australia. The transaction has been
completed on 12 March 2013.

The directors considered that the acquisition constituted a business
acquisition as it comprised acquisition of a set of assets and
activities, including technical expertise from the key management
and personnel transferred to the Group, product distribution and
supply chain management as well as intellectual property rights,
which collectively is capable of being conducted and managed
for the purpose of providing a return. As such, the acquisition is
accounted for a business combination using acquisition method of
accounting.

Assets recognised at the date of acquisition on 12 March 2013
were as follows:

WMKEE 1R, AR —HEES
BEMffBATRKRMNEBIE=A
Cynergy Groupz] 37 ESRR 5%, UL
Cynergy Group BE N — 1B %75, £ B
RBAFEREREERZITHE.
HENDH, XEL7%1,281,0008
7T (#EEH210,399,819387T ), RIEU
BEEEBIERAFTE—EREK
RHER, HEREXBESI.
XEER-E—=F=B+"H%
o

EERR WEBR—EEXEBRK
B, BReREWE—HEERER
EE, BREREAEEZEEE
EBERAEBZENES. EmDHE
RHEEERE, URMEEE, &
ATHEEREELIRMHEIR. &
I, WEEERAKEERE, LES
BHANR.

REERH—_F—=5=R+—H
R EEWNT

Provisional
fair value
RRAREE
HK$
BT

Net assets acquired FriB EEFE
Property, plant and equipment WM. BERREE 121,785
Intangible assets B EE 9,621,015
Inventories =7E 657,019

BEZAREE 10,399,819

Fair value of assets
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL 32. WESMIB AR, 555 HHEKE

OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) »F) (&)

(d) Acquisition of business from Cynergy Group (continued) (d) @ Cynergy Group UIEEEEF5 (&)
The fair value of intangible assets has been determined on the BREE/AREBEDEREREGE
provisional basis awaiting for further information before finalising (EFEMER UREREMLE) M
the valuation. The fair value is being valued by Asset Appraisal FEEH, AREBECHPHES
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer, not EFEREERAS ( EAEEIE
connected to the Group. MIEZ B S EREELER ) EfT

&E.
The fair value of inventories at the date of acquisition approximates FERKWEBABZ AREBEHEEE
to the selling price less cost of disposal and a reasonable profit BREERAREE SN MBS
allowance. EREEE.
The fair value of property, plant and equipment has been valued on ME. MEREBZ AREERFT
depreciated replacement cost approach. EREERNEMGE.
Consideration transferred cEEAE
HK$
BT
Cash Re 10,399,819
Cash outflow on acquisition of assets RIS EREEZRE
i
HK$
BT
Cash consideration paid EFRERE 10,399,819
The acquired business contributed insignificant amount of revenue FrL B8 2 S W i H i E 3R S HA R B
and profit for the period between the date of acquisition and the BRI BEZ WA Ri#@H .

end of the reporting period.
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33.

TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has bills receivables of HK$6,232,435
that were transferred to suppliers by endorsing those receivables on a
full recourse basis. As the Group has not transferred the significant risks
and rewards relating to these receivables, it continues to recognise the
full carrying amount of the trade receivables and trade payables. These
financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

As at 31 March 2013

3. BEREMEE

RIB—Z=F£=B=+—H, A&£E%
SHEREEEZBESEZERKFIET
HETFHERNEKEIRE6232,4358
TCo FARZANEEE N R B i S FE WX
EERNEXRKREOSR, HSEET
R ER RN M IR ERE &,
ZESHEERBHERARAIEINLG
BUBRREIIER,

R-E—=f=RA=+—H

Bills receivables
endorsed to
supplier with
full recourse
RtERES
14 = ki)
BEiE

2B
HK$
BT

FEW =R Z BREE
FEFIBRFR Z BREE

6,232,435
(6,232,435)

Carrying amount of bills receivables
Carrying amount of trade payables
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 34, BBRGIERTE

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted on 13 July 2010 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to directors and eligible employees, the directors and employees of the
Company may, at the discretion of the Company’s directors, be granted
options (the “Options”) to subscribe for shares in the Company (the
“Shares”) at a price determined by its directors, but shall not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share on the date of grant.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the total
number of shares in respect of which Options may be granted under the
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, and the number of shares in respect of
which Options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from the
date of its adoption. Options granted must be taken up not later than
30 days after the date of grant. A consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an Option. An Option is exercisable on
the date when the offer for the grant of Options is made but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the Options.

No Options have been granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

REARBR-F-FEFLA+=AFK
mzEEREsta ([ %atEl]), £EB8
NERSEENRGERESRHER,
ARBDEFTHBRARILTEZRES
BErERE(BRE]), UARIE
EEEZBERRBBLIRBRM ([ ZFR
3 ]), BHRBERFIEER()ZER
IR BREBRAETZESERE
KA W HE ; () BEEELBER
BEEXHEBMIRETZEBARERRA
B A RBRDFHIBHE ; R(i) SR
BROREHABZEE=EZ&SE .

RERRNBRREFLMAE, RIBZTE
RAFFEEZBREMS R ZROBET
SEBBAXTDREAKEBERTRMHZ
10%, RIBZTEIREA—FERERDED
ATEREZEBREMSRZKRODEE,
AMEBEARAIREMUBEERTRG
Z 1%,

ZEEIBERMB R+ EREH. KH
ZIBRERIIE H B BRI 0ORNESR .
ENBRERGC1BTESNE. BR
BEURBRERHEBESTE, ERED
BR T ERBRER L B RE+FIE
M{TfE.

BT EIR, WARRDEIRBRE.
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35. FEALRZS
(a) FEMZ(fT)ERERTIA

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Amount due from (to) related companies

Due from related companies:

FEUIEREL T :

Trade balances BS&ER

Due to related companies:

Trade balances BS5&Ee

2012
HK$
BT
43,582,841
FEITERERT :
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
926,236 790,755

Amounts represent balances with related companies, which
are fellow subsidiary of the Company (2012: subsidiary/jointly
controlled entity of the non-controlling shareholder with significant
influence over a subsidiary of the Company).

As at 31 March 2012, amounts HK$43,582,841(2013: Nil) included
in the Group’s amounts due from related companies were trading
in nature, and arose from sales of packaging and printing products.
The amount at 31 March 2012 had been classified as held-for-sale
in note 11(a). The following is an aged analysis of the amount due
from related parties presented based on the invoice date, which is
approximated the respective revenue recognition date, at the end
of the reporting period:

ZENREEBEAR 2GS, M
b UNSIEIP R WNSITEEN =N
(ZF—ZF . $A TIWBLEE
BEARENZIFERBRRZHBA
B8/ HEERER ).

RIE—T"HF=B=+—H, &
EEWKEEADNIEGEHELR
ERERMELEBEZMEZ
RIE435828M BT ( —FE—=4 .,
®), R“FE—_—&F#=A=+—H,
ERARIEC KT 11(e) D ESIEFE
HE. UTARBEZAH (XA
HEW R B ) 252> B EDE
ATFIERREHERZ RR O .

2012
HK$
BIT

Within 60 days 60 KA
Over 60 days #BiB 60X

43,214,751
368,090

43,582,841
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35. FAEALRR (@)
(a) FEMZ(fF)BRIEQRSRIE (&)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Amount due from (to) related companies (continued)

For trade related amounts due from related companies, the
amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and with an average
credit term of 60 days. There is no balance as at 31 March 2012
are past due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s amounts due to related
companies of HK$926,236 (2012: HK$790,755) are trading
in nature, arising from purchase of packaging materials for
pharmaceuticals and biotechnological products (2012: for purchase
of materials for packaging and printing products). The amount at 31
March 2012 has been classified as held-for-sale in note 11(a). The
whole amount as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 are aged within 90
days. The amounts were unsecured, non-interest bearing and with
credit term ranged from 30 days to 120 days.

(b)(i) Tianda Group has provided shareholders’ loan to Tianda Mining

(Yunnan) Limited (“Tianda Yunnan”) and Tianda Mining (Gansu)
Limited (“Tianda Gansu”), former subsidiaries of the Company for
the working capital need for the establishment of subsidiaries in
PRC and investments in exploring mineral resources in the PRC in
proportion to their respective equity interest in the subsidiaries. As
at 31 March 2012, loan contributed by the Tianda Group to Tianda
Yunnan and Tianda Gansu amounted to HK$6,074,110. The
amount at 31 March 2012 has been classified as held-for-sale in
note 11(b). The amount was unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand. Tianda Yunnan and Tianda Gansu were disposed of
upon completion of the Asset Swap on 31 August 2012.

(b)(ii) The amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest

free and repayable on demand. The amount at 31 March 2012 has
been classified as held-for-sale in note 11(b).

MW EIER T Z B B EREKIEM
5, ZERNEKERE. FHE,
BEEEHFIIR60K. RZF—Z
F=ZB=+—H, RBESHBEE
EiESBBERFHREREZ
KRR

RZE—=F=B=+—H, &&
) FE < B9 18 4\ ) 57 18 926,236 38 7T
TE—TF . 7907558 ) BB S
ME, DNREBBRELEYERZS
YR ZE—ZF . REQED
RIERFFBYHR ) MEL, RZTE
——H#=B=+—H, B@xEE
RN () P EEBEEE. KT
E—=ER_FE-—_HF=B=+—
, BERIEZIREBEBOKRN. %
SHEAEKR. AR, BEE
BEANFI0KRE120K,

(b)() Rk B A2 BRI BADRA

Bx(ZEm)BRAFE([XXE
) RRAKEX(HE) BRI
(T RXHR | ) BEHERRER, %
BEZBERHEBRB RN ERATL
Ebl, AP E RSz B AR RS
PEIREHRBERRBE(IEEE
Efi%. RZE—_—F=B=+—
B, RAXEBERXAXEBRRXAH
HIRHZERR6,0741108T. Z
BRER-_F—_F=B=+—H
EMEE M) N BERIFFHE. &
SNERERR. FHERERE
KREE. RREBRRKHBERZ
E-—_F/\B=+—RHEEERT
RELE.

(b)i) BT REERATDZRIERER

B AWERBEEREER. %F
MER-_F-—_F=ZA=+—H%
B¥EE 1(b) D EERFHELE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #E_F—=F=H=+—

HILFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions
with related companies relating to continuing and discontinued

(d)

35. EEALIZR (&)

(c) AEBENMRFECEEBERE
RIS RBEEBEATERNT

2012

HKS

i BT
32,633,780 154,558,357
9,188,536 19,573,307
1,890,518 1,613,244
79,364 4,843,213
11,037,517

2,760,763 11,091,989

1,593,831 -

operations: X5
Name of related company Notes Nature of transactions
REASRE B ZHitE
ERIEEEBREEAT (i) Sales
HE
EBAIEEREEGR AT (i) Sales
HE
Tianda Zhuhai (i) Sales
KBRS s
ATIBEE (8 ) GREEAET (i) Sales
HE
Design Fee Income
RETEWA
ERTAERERNERAR (i) Purchases
BE
Cheng Cheng (iii) Purchases
B0 BE
Notes BIEE

i

(i)

The related companies are either subsidiaries or a joint-controlled entity of a non-
controlling shareholder with significant influence over a subsidiary of the Company.
These related party transactions ceased upon completion of the Asset Swap on 31
August 2012.

The amount represents sales of packaging and printing products to Tianda Zhuhai
up to the date of completion of the Asset Swap. Tianda Zhuhai was formerly a fellow
subsidiary of the Company and now become a subsidiary of the Group.

The amount represents purchases of packaging and printing products from Cheng
Cheng after the disposal to the ultimate holding company of the Company pursuant to
the Asset Swap Agreement which Cheng Cheng has since became a fellow subsidiary
of the Company.

On 30 March 2012, the Group entered into Asset Swap Agreement
with Tianda Group, the ultimate holding company of the Company
and the transaction was completed on 31 August 2012 as detailed
in note 32.

(d)

0}

K=

BEATBHARIMEATEERE
ENZAERERZMEA TSR
FlEE, ZEREALTRZR T
FN\B=+—HEEEBRTMERLL,

ZEHEEEEEERTMBIRRBEE
BERIBERTFRAKE. RKIKBSL
FIR=E=F. \TZH?Bﬁ%’\T BR%
FEEZES

ZEREEHMRREEEER B ELE
FARBZREERATLBELRAR
REZFAEMEADROBRBEECE
ENRIER.

“HF=RB=1+AH, *%KH

B7R, \TZ%,%%iseHQ’\TiEkE
AMEEERBE, MEBEXZRN

—5—_

FNB=t+—B%m, #

BB 32,
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. FBEALZS (@)
(e) Compensation of key management personnel () TEEEASME
The remunerations of directors and other members of key EENEMTFEEBASRERNZ
management during the year are as follows: FEMaNT
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short-term benefits EHAER) 3,726,244 2,929,810
Post-employment benefits BRI EER 29,000 10,000
3,755,244 2,939,810
The remunerations of key management, including directors, were FTEEEBAS (BEEE) ZFMD
determined by reference to the performance of individuals and S2REAXRRRTISZEZMERE.
market trends.
36. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 36. FEFIREXH
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Acquisition Consideration BEFE—=F=B=1+—HLHFE,
of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group was partly settled by the Disposal AAEXEBZWEZE{EREEA
consideration of Disposal Group as set out in note 32. Bz HESEREBHEE (MM
32),
During the year ended 31 March 2012, dividend amounting to BE_ZE—_"HF=A=1+—HLHFE,
HK$46,708,038 was declared to non-controlling shareholders. An ArE)m A=A IR R Sk 43 846,708,038
amount of HK$25,038,936 was settled by offsetting against the amount BITZIRE, 25,038,936 82 NIEME

due from related party. W EBIE A T FRIESZ AT .
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY  37. xR EZBEKkiRE

2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BIT

ASSETS =13
Plant and equipment G 2,865,103 654,411
Investments in subsidiaries RBATIRE 221,904,962 12
Other receivables and rental deposits HipEW i EERS 1,702,234 3,056,058
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWIHI B A BEIFRIE 195,640,191 -
Bank deposits $RITESK 243,456,573 322,548,263
Bank balances and cash IRITERRES 8,277,157 2,432,818
Assets classified as held-for-sale (note) PEAREHEEE (M) - 242,075,705
673,906,220 570,767,267

LIABILITIES 8f&
Other payables =gl EN 2,585,806 2,579,429
Amounts due to subsidiaries FES B TS - 75,400,514
2,585,806 77,979,943
NET ASSETS BERE 671,320,414 492,787,324

CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R#E
Share capital [N 187,011,816 187,011,816
Reserves & 484,308,598 305,775,508
TOTAL EQUITY EsmiasE 671,320,414 492,787,324
Note: The amount for the year ended 31 March 2012 comprises investments in subsidiaries of 5T BEZEZE——F=RA=1+—HLFE, 5%
HK$112,257,499 and amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$129,818,206. FEEERMBATZIRE 112,257 499 BT K &

ST BfY /BB 22 BIFRIE 129,818,206 7T o
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. EEMBRARZFHIE
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 March 2013 UTARZE—=RZF—_F=8
and 2012 are as follows: =+—HARBDZFEMBATZFHE -
Proportion of
Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid ordinary issued ordinary share
registration share capital/ capitallregistered
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRITRYRE
A EEks/ FRAFFCRITEERE
WEBAREE AMREXME HRES AMEFEELR TR
Directly Indirectly
2012
%

Meng Sheng* PRC RMB36,000,000 55 Research, development,
manufacture and sales of
pharmaceutical and
biotechnology products

e i AE#360000007 BEENERIAR.
R, BEREE

Cheng Cheng*™ PRC RMB117,875,800 60 Sales of packaging and
printing products

EJT i ARBT8758007 BERIAERZHE

Yunyu Bio-Pharmaceutical British Virgin US§1 - Investment holding

Company Limited Islands/PRC/
Hong Kong
EBERREE/ 1ET &R
el /&

Yunyu Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS2 - Investment holding

EXEEERAF BE 287 REER

Tianda Yunnan® Hong Kong HK§100 - Investment holding

AKRER B 100587 REER

Tianda Gansu® Hong Kong HK§100 51 Investment holding

AKRHE® B 100587 REER

Yunnan Tianda Mining PRC US§1,395,000 51 Exploration and

Limited** development of mineral
resources

ERAKBEARAT™ o 1,395,000 57T RN RRRERLR
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

38. FEMBLARAZHB (&)

Proportion of

Place of Issued and nominal value of

incorporation/ fully paid ordinary issued ordinary share

registration share capitall capitallregistered
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities

ERTRER

A,/ =117, 94 FRTMGEHTEERE/

lENGE ARRERYE H2RES HREFEELE TERE
Directly Indirectly
B G
2012
%

Gansu Tianda Mining Limited*** ~ PRC RMB4,000,000 51 Exploration and
development of mineral
resources

HERKBERERAT™ & E ARHE4,0000007 B R EERR

Yunyu Trading Development Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - Inactive

Limited

EFBRERERAT & 5,000000 7T REE

Tianda Zhuhai** PRC RMB160,000,000 - Research, development,
manufacture and sales of
pharmaceutical and
biotechnology products

PN N thEl ESH#160,000,000 7T BEEMERZHR.
PR, HEREE

Tianda Australia® Australia AU$1,000,000 - Marketing, sale and distribution
of healthcare products

PN AR 1,000,000 7T 78, HERDHERRER

Tianda Phamaceuiticals PRC HK$50,000,000 - Research and development

(China) Limited® of pharmaceutical
products and provision
of intra-group consultation
service

RREE (| )BRAR  HE 50,000,000387% BHEERZHRR
FE, URRHEERE
iR

Company incorporated as cooperative joint venture enterprise.
Companies established as foreign invested limited liability companies.
# Companies newly acquired during the year ended 31 March 2013.

*x

4 Companies disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of
all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and therefore the above
list contains only those subsidiaries which principally affect the results or
assets and liabilities of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
reporting period or at any time during the year.

: REUSFEERER ML,

* o U BNEBREEATZAE.

# RBEE_FE-—=F=A=+—HILEFERHW
B2 AE].

4 RBEEZE—=F=A=+—HIFERHE
ZRE,

EERRINEMBENBATZFREES
BHEMBRIR, i, EXRMAIE
BEHAEEXENEERBBEREX
TEZWBRE.

RIBEIRJFEREAEE LR B A
B EE T EOERES.
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TIANDA PHARMAGEUTICALS LIMITED

Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong

Tel 1 +852 2545 3313
Fax :+852 2541 6558
Email :info@tianda.com

FERPRRZB1FFE KE24182405-2410F

B|EE 1 +852 25453313
EE : +852 2541 6558
ETH : info@tianda.com
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